
 MAY 26, 2025 

 WATERLOO REGION DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 

 NOTICE OF MEETING 

 The  regular  monthly  Board  Meeting  of  the  Waterloo  Region  District  School  Board  will  be  held  in 
 the  Boardroom,  Building  2,  1  st  Floor,  51  Ardelt  Avenue,  Kitchener,  Ontario,  on  Monday,  May  26, 
 2025, at 7:00 p.m. 

 AGENDA 

 Call to Order 

 Territorial Acknowledgement and O Canada 

 Approval of Agenda 

 Announcements/Celebrating Board Activities 
 01  Past Director’s Bursary  Chairperson 

 Communications Good News Update  H. Hughes 

 Delegations 

 Consent Agenda** 
 Receipt/Approval of Minutes  : 
 Approve Minutes - Parent Involvement Committee Meeting of March 25, 2025 
 Approve Minutes - Special Education Advisory Committee Meeting of April 9, 2025 
 Receive Minutes - Board Meeting of April 23, 2025 
 Approve Minutes - Committee of the Whole Meeting of May 14, 2025 
 Receipt/Approval of Monthly Reports  : 

 25  Staffing Information – Retirements and Resignations  B. Lemon 
 28  Staffing Information – Appointments  B. Lemon 
 30  Student Suspension/Expulsion Report, March 2025  A. Gaymes San-Vicente 
 32  Student Suspension/Expulsion Report, April 2025  A. Gaymes San-Vicente 
 34  Quarterly Student Behaviour Incidents Report  B. Lemon 

 Declarations of Pecuniary Interest 

 Staff Follow Up 
 41  Postponed Motion - Classroom Evacuation  Chairperson 

 Reports 
 BIEP Update: Student Mental Health, Well-Being and Engagement 

 A. Gaymes San-Vicente / J. Albrecht 

 **All  matters  listed  under  the  Consent  Agenda  are  considered  not  to  require  debate  by  the  Board  of  Trustees 
 and should be approved in one motion in accordance with the recommendation contained in each report. 



 Board Reports 
 42  Scheduling of Board Committee Structure Recommendations  Ad Hoc Committee 
 96  Direction for OPSBA Annual General Meeting Voting Delegate  Chairperson 

 Board Communications 

 Other Business 

 Question Period  (10 minutes) 

 Future Agenda Items  (Notices of motion to be referred  to Agenda Development Committee) 

 Adjournment 

 2 
 Questions relating to this agenda should be directed to 

 Stephanie Reidel, Manager of Corporate Services 
 519-570-0003, ext. 4336, or Stephanie_Reidel@wrdsb.ca 



 Report to Board of Trustees 
 May 26, 2025 

 Subject: Recipients of the 2024-2025 Past Directors’ Bursary 

 Recommendation 

 This report is for the information of the Board. 

 Status 

 The  Past  Directors’  Bursary,  will  provide  funding  for  students  who  are  pursuing  a  trade, 
 through  college  or  apprenticeship,  and  who  have  not  already  been  selected  to  receive 
 an award at their graduation ceremony. 

 The  Selection  Committee,  composed  of  Scott  Miller,  Director  of  Education,  Maedith 
 Radlein,  Chair,  Joanne  Weston,  Vice-Chair  and  Scott  Piatkowski,  Past  Chair,  chose  16 
 recipients to receive the 2024-2025 Past Directors’ Bursary. 

 2024-2025 Past Directors’ Bursary Recipients 

 Aiden Patchell  Jacob Hespeler Secondary School 

 Binan Alawsage  Kitchener-Waterloo Collegiate Institute 

 Blake Neomytka  Grand River Collegiate Institute 

 Cohen Pettit  Forest Heights Collegiate Institute 

 Dominik Rodriguez  Preston High School 

 Edmund Baskerville  Galt Collegiate Institute 

 Erik Takamaki  Elmira District Secondary School 

 Jacob Scott  Huron Heights Secondary School 

 Justin Lee  Huron Heights Secondary School 

 Kayla Fenlon  Forest Heights Collegiate Institute 

 Lucas Tamas  Laurel Heights Secondary School 

 Mitchell Roemer  Elmira District Secondary School 

 Rakeem Sharma  Grand River Collegiate Institute 

 Sebastien Plante-Doey  Southwood Secondary School 

 Page  1  of  2 

1



 Vincent Sherk-Gobay  Kitchener-Waterloo Collegiate Institute 

 Zain Wilson  Elmira District Secondary School 

 The following criteria were taken into consideration: 

 1.  The student’s key characteristics. 
 2.  An  example  of  how  the  student  has  demonstrated  perseverance  and/or  has 

 overcome  obstacles  or  made  a  remarkable  comeback  during  their  secondary 
 school career. 

 3.  A staff member’s recommendation. 

 All 16 recipients met the criteria and will receive a $125 bursary. 

 Background 

 The  Past  Directors’  Bursary,  formerly  known  as  the  Linda  Fabi  Bursary,  was 
 established  by  the  Board  of  Trustees  in  celebration  and  recognition  of  the  many 
 contributions  and  achievements  of  Linda  Fabi  during  her  tenure  as  Director  of 
 Education  for  the  Waterloo  Region  District  School  Board.  After  the  retirement  of  John 
 Bryant,  the  name  was  changed  to  reflect  the  Trustees’  gratitude  for  the  contributions  of 
 multiple retired Directors. 

 The  total  annual  amount  of  the  Bursary  is  $2,000,  which  is  presented  to  students  of  the 
 Waterloo  Region  District  School  Board.  Depending  on  the  number  of  applicants,  this 
 award  can  be  divided  to  recognize  several  eligible  applicants.  This  is  the  eleventh  year 
 that the bursary will be awarded. 

 Financial implications 

 The  2024-2025  Past  Director  Bursary  expense  of  $2,000  will  be  charged  to  the  Board 
 of Trustees’ budget. 

 Communications 

 The  announcement  of  the  Past  Directors’  Bursary  recipients  will  be  shared  with  all 
 schools, staff, students, and the public via the Board website. 

 Prepared by:  Maedith Radlein, Chair of the Board, 
 Scott Miller, Director of Education 
 in consultation with the Leadership Council. 

2



 

Page 1 of 3 

   Report to Board of Trustees 
May 26, 2025 

Subject:  Staffing Information –  
 Retirements and Resignations 

Recommendation  

This report is provided for information of the Board. 

Status 

The employees listed in Appendix A of this report have received acknowledgement of their 
retirement or resignation. 

Background 

The board’s practice is to receive information regarding staff retirements and resignations 
at regular monthly board meetings. 

Financial implications 

Expenses are within the existing approved budget. 

Communications 

Employees listed in this report have communicated through Human Resource Services.  

 

Prepared by:  Bill Lemon, Associate Director, in consultation with Leadership Council.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

25



 

Page 2 of 3 

Appendix A 

Staffing Statistics – Retirements 
Current at May 26, 2025 

 
 

Retirements: Elementary Teaching Staff 

First Last Position/Location Retirement 
Date 

Years of 
Service

Amber Atkinson-
Nicolas 

Teacher, Cedar Creek PS September 1, 
2025 

17 

Judith Bean Teacher, Blue Heron PS June 30, 2025 33
Cheryl Gardner Occasional Teacher June 27, 2025 17
Andrea Geiger Teacher, WT Townshend PS June 30, 2025 18
Ross Gibaut Teacher, Hespeler PS June 30, 2025 24

Renee Hardie Teacher, Franklin PS June 30, 2025 20
Brenda Hawkins Teacher, Woodland Park PS June 30, 2025 30
Janet Laffin Teacher, Jean Steckle PS June 30, 2025 19

Colleen McEwan-
Griffith 

Teacher, Forest Glen PS June 30, 2025 33 

Alanna McKillop Teacher, Forest Hill PS June 27, 2025 33
Allison Meklensek Teacher, Forest Hill PS May 31, 2025 18
Julie Miller Teacher, Forest Glen PS June 30, 2025 28

Sharon Newmaster ESL Teacher, MacGregor PS June 30, 2025 22
Helen Quinton Teacher, Westvale PS June 30, 2025 19
Anita Rich Teacher, Jean Steckle PS June 30, 2025 33

Tammy Stinson Teacher, Lexington PS June 27, 2025 13
Krista Vandongen Teacher, Preston PS June 28, 2025 31

 
 

Retirements: Secondary Teaching Staff 

First Last Position/Location Retirement 
Date 

Years of 
Service

Tim Biro Teacher, Glenview Park SS June 30, 2025 15
Fatima Hall Teacher, Glenview Park SS June 30, 2025 34
Biljana Vazic Teacher, Forest Heights CI June 30, 2025 24

Gail Walker Teacher, Laurel Heights SS June 27, 2025 22
 
 
 
 
 
 

26



 

Page 3 of 3 

Retirements: Administrative & Support Staff 

First Last Position/Location Retirement 
Date 

Years of 
Service

Santos Canada Custodian, Westvale PS July 31, 2025 18
Kim Crawley Secretary, Meadowlane PS June 27, 2025 25

Wendy Creighton Educational Assistant, King 
Edward PS

May 30, 2025 15 

John Martz Head Custodian, WT 
Townshend PS

June 27, 2025 35 

Sean McCammon Outdoor Education Specialist, 
Laurel OEC

August 31, 
2025 

27 

Angela McGowan Guidance Secretary, Kitchener 
CI

May 31, 2025 7 

Mary Sue Meredith Principal, Westvale PS June 30, 2025 30
Slobodanka Petrovic Custodian, Kitchener CI May 29, 2025 13

Margaret Slauenwhite Educational Assistant, 
Southridge PS

June 30, 2025 26 

Rachel Wiseman Educational Assistant, 
Smithson PS

June 27, 2025 18 

 
 

Staffing Statistics – Resignations 
Current at May 26, 2025 

 
 

, Permanent Staff Resignations 

First Last Position/Location Resignation 
Date

Kristen Duimering Teacher, Forest Heights CI May 15 ,2025
Jillian Este Teacher, Galt CI June 28, 2025

Danielle Holden Principal, Westheights PS June 30, 2025
Joshua Holmes Teacher, Westmount PS May 2, 2025
Kelly Ingrassia Teacher, Moffat Creek PS May 6, 2025

Patricia McNanney Educational Assistant, Chalmers Street 
PS

May 19, 2025 

Shannon Norkett Early Childhood Educator, Abraham Erb 
PS

April 28, 2025 

Samantha O’Neill Teacher, Crestview PS May 9, 2025
Priya Singh Secretary, Winston Churchill PS May 9, 2025

Gunay Soliman Child Youth Worker, Hillcrest PS May 21, 2025

 

27



 

Page 1 of 2 

Report to Board of Trustees 
May 26, 2025 

Subject:  Staffing Information – Appointments 

Recommendation 

This report is provided for information of the Board. 

Status 

The staff appointments as noted on Appendix A of this report are effective the dates 
indicated. 

Background 

The board’s practice has been to have appointments presented for information at regular 
monthly board meetings. 

Financial implications 

Expenses are within the existing approved budget. 

Communications 

Employees listed in this report have been advised of the appointments.  

 

Prepared by:  Bill Lemon, Associate Director, in consultation with Leadership Council. 

 

  

28



 

Page 2 of 2 

Appendix A 

 
Staffing Information – New Appointments 

Current at May 26, 2025 
 

  

 

New Appointments: Administrative and Support Staff 
First Last Position / Location Effective Date 

 
Sangeetha Rappai Tradesperson, Maintenance May 8, 2025 

 

 

New Hires - due to retirements, resignations or leaves and are to replace full or part time vacancies. 

Human Resources & Equity Services 

29



 Report to Board of Trustees 
 May 26, 2025 

 Subject:  Student Suspension/Expulsion Report 
 March 2025 

 Recommendation 

 This report is provided for the Waterloo Region District School Board with information 
 regarding monthly and year-to-date suspension/expulsion data. 

 Status 

 Comparing year to date from March 2024 and March 2025, elementary suspensions 
 have decreased by 64 and secondary suspensions have decreased by 107. 

 Comparing year to date from March 2024 and March 2025, school expulsions have 
 increased by 6 and board expulsions have decreased by 11. 

 The most recent month’s suspension and expulsion data is included below. The data is 
 accurate up to, and including, the date of collection. 

 Suspensions 

 ●  Total elementary school suspensions in March 2024 - 134, year to date = 790 
 ●  Total elementary school suspensions in March 2025 - 109, year to date = 726 
 ●  Total secondary school suspensions in March 2024  - 114, year to date = 966 
 ●  Total secondary school suspensions in March 2025 - 146,  year to date = 859 

 Expulsions 

 ●  Total school expulsions in March  2024 - 0, Year to Date = 2 
 ●  Total school expulsions in March 2025 -  1, Year to Date = 8 
 ●  Total board expulsions in March 2024 -   2, Year to Date = 16 
 ●  Total board expulsions in March 2025 -   0, Year to Date = 5 

 Violent Incidents 

 The term violent incident is defined as the occurrence of any of the following or the 
 occurrence of a combination of any of the following; possessing a weapon, including 
 possessing a firearm, physical assault causing bodily harm requiring medical attention, 
 sexual assault, robbery, using a weapon to cause or to threaten bodily harm to another 
 person, extortion, hate and/or bias-motivated occurrences. 

 ●  Total elementary/secondary violent incidents in March 2024 - 13, Year to Date 97 
 ●  Total elementary/secondary violent incidents in March 2025 - 16, Year to Date 104 

 Page  1  of  2 

30



 Background 

 As requested by the Board, suspension/expulsion data will be presented at the Board 
 meeting in October, November, January, March, and May of each year. 

 Financial implications 

 There are no financial implications. 

 Communications 

 Upon request, suspension/expulsion data is communicated to the Ministry of 
 Education for statistical purposes. 

 Prepared by:  Ryan Hume, Superintendent, Student Achievement & Well-Being, 
 B. Cathcart, System Administrator, Learning Support Services, and in 
 consultation with Leadership Council 

 Page  2  of  2 

31



 Report to Board of Trustees 
 May 26, 2025 

 Subject:  Student Suspension/Expulsion Report 
 April 2025 

 Recommendation 

 This report is provided for the Waterloo Region District School Board with information 
 regarding monthly and year-to-date suspension/expulsion data. 

 Status 

 Comparing year to date from April 2024 and April 2025, elementary suspensions have 
 decreased by 52 and secondary suspensions have decreased by 62. 

 Comparing year to date from April 2024 and April 2025, school expulsions have 
 increased by 6 and board expulsions have decreased by 13 . 

 The most recent month’s suspension and expulsion data is included below. The data is 
 accurate up to, and including, the date of collection. 

 Suspensions 

 ●  Total elementary school suspensions in April 2024 - 128, year to date = 918 
 ●  Total elementary school suspensions in April 2025 - 140, year to date = 866 
 ●  Total secondary school suspensions in April 2024 - 100, year to date = 1066 
 ●  Total secondary school suspensions in April 2025 - 145, year to date = 1004 

 Expulsions 

 ●  Total school expulsions in April 2024 -  0, Year to Date = 2 
 ●  Total school expulsions in April 2025  - 0, Year to Date = 8 
 ●  Total board expulsions in April 2024   - 5, Year to Date = 21 
 ●  Total board expulsions in April 2025   - 3, Year to Date = 8 

 Violent Incidents 

 The term violent incident is defined as the occurrence of any of the following or the 
 occurrence of a combination of any of the following; possessing a weapon, including 
 possessing a firearm, physical assault causing bodily harm requiring medical attention, 
 sexual assault, robbery, using a weapon to cause or to threaten bodily harm to another 
 person, extortion, hate and/or bias-motivated occurrences. 

 ●  Total elementary/secondary violent incidents in April 2024 - 8, Year to Date 105 
 ●  Total elementary/secondary violent incidents in April 2025 -17, Year to Date 121 

 Page  1  of  2 

32



 Background 

 As requested by the Board, suspension/expulsion data will be presented at the Board 
 meeting in October, November, January, March, and May of each year. 

 Financial implications 

 There are no financial implications. 

 Communications 

 Upon request, suspension/expulsion data is communicated to the Ministry of 
 Education for statistical purposes. 

 Prepared by:  Ryan Hume, Superintendent, Student Achievement & Well-Being, 
 B. Cathcart, System Administrator, Learning Support Services, and in 
 consultation with Leadership Council 

 Page  2  of  2 

33



 

Page 1 of 5 

Report to Board of Trustees 
May 26, 2025 

Subject:  Reported Student Behaviour Quarterly Data 
Q3 –2024-2025 

Recommendation: 

This report is provided for the Waterloo Region District School Board with information 
regarding reported incidences of student Behaviour for the quarter (February 1, 2025 - 
April 15, 2025). 

Status: 

 The Board continues to work to revise and enhance AP2330 - Management 
Process for Student Behaviours Causing a Risk of Injury.  

 The Board continues to deploy a variety of methods to staff schools given the 
rate of absenteeism within the system, staff are actively pursuing alternative 
approaches for emergency staffing.   

 The Board continues to investigate innovative staffing initiatives to support 
students with the most complex needs. 

 Employee absenteeism and attrition can introduce challenges with supporting 
complex students when new and/or different staff interact with them. 

 Staff recommend caution in using incident reports as a proxy for student 
behaviour as a single incident could generate multiple reports. 

 We continue to be proactive in utilizing our Behaviour Management Systems 
(BMS) team to support staff and administration in the following ways: 

o Responding to student specific referrals addressing supports for safety 
plans, review of critical incidents, and classroom observations and 
audits; 

o Providing site specific BMS support (i.e., practice a containment, student 
specific interventions etc.);   

o Supporting growing system needs in BMS by continuing to train new 
trainers; 

o Assisting in facilitating the transition of students returning to school; 
o Direct involvement with transition planning to ensure staff feel supported 

- setting both students and staff up for success; 
o Proactively identifying schools and students that may require direct 

support from BMS; 
o Analyzing and actively investigating special education paraprofessional 

resources to better support schools; 

Student Behaviour incidents are recorded under four (4) categories in order of severity 
from least severe to most severe: 

34



  

Page 2 of 5 

Hazard:  The worker is reporting a hazard, the worker sustained no injury during 
the incident, or it was a near miss.  The Board and Unions actively encourage 
employees to report workplace hazards in order to act proactively to prevent 
more serious incidents.   

First aid:  Applying minor first aid measures like cleaning minor cuts, scrapes or 
scratches; applying a band aid, cold compress or ice pack.  First Aid is provided 
at the workplace.   

Health care (or medical aid):  Worker sustained an injury requiring medical aid 
from an external health care practitioner (i.e. a doctor, nurse, chiropractor or 
physiotherapist); services provided at a hospital and/or health facility and/or 
require prescription drugs.   This is required to be reported to the Workers Safety 
and Insurance Board (WSIB). 

Lost Time:  The worker sustains injury that requires time away from work after 
the day of incident and was unable to work.  This is required to be reported to 
the Workers Safety and Insurance Board (WSIB). 

Previous Year Quarterly Report Comparison: 

Quarterly student Behaviour data as reported by WRDSB staff for the period February 
1, 2025 - April 15, 2025 compared to the data from the same period February 1, 2024 - 
April 15, 2024 last school year:  

 Total Elementary incidents have decreased by 211 incidents from the same 
period last year. 

 Total Secondary incidents have increased by 4 incidents from the same period 
last year. 

Reported Student Behaviour Incidents for the Current Reporting Period  

(February 1, 2025 - April 15, 2025): 

 Total Elementary Behaviour incidents: (February 1, 2025 - April 15, 2025): 826 
Incidents 

o Hazard – 595 incidents 
 72.03% of all elementary incidents 

o First Aid – 207 incidents 
 25.06% of all elementary incidents 

o Health Care – 7 events  
 0.85% of all elementary events 

o Lost Time – 17 events -   
 2.06% of all elementary events 

 
 Total Secondary Behaviour incidents from (February 1, 2025 - April 15, 2025): 

34 incidents 
o Hazard – 25 incidents 

 73.53% of all Secondary incidents 
o First Aid – 9 incidents 

35



  

Page 3 of 5 

 26.47% of all Secondary incidents 
o Health Care – 0 incidents 

 0.00% of all Secondary incidents 
o Lost Time – 0 incidents 

 0.00% of all Secondary incidents 
 

 Total Behaviour incidents for hazards, first aid, health care, and lost time per 
employee group from February 1, 2025 - April 15, 2025 - 860 Incidents 
 

o Educational Assistant (EA) / Child and Youth Worker (CYW) – 399 
 46.40% of total incidents 

o Education Support Staff (ESS) – 1 
 0.12% of total incidents 

o Early Child Educator (ECE) – 142 
 16.51% of total incidents 

o Elementary Teacher – 227 
 26.40% of total incidents 

o Elementary Occasional Teacher – 64 
 7.44% of total incidents 

o Secondary Teacher/Occasional Teacher – 6 
 0.70% of total incidents 

o Supervision Monitors (SMACA) – 1 
 0.12% of total incidents 

o Administrators – 17 
 1.98% of total incidents 

o Other – 3 
 0.35% of total incidents 

 

Reported Student Behaviour Incidents for the Prior School Year:  

2024 Reporting Information:  

Reported Student Behaviour Incidents for the School Year (February 1, 2024 - 
April 15, 2024):  

 Total Elementary Behaviour incidents: (February 1, 2024 - April 15, 2024):                               
1037 Incidents 

o Hazard – 786 incidents 
 75.80% of all elementary incidents 

o First Aid – 236 incidents 
 22.76% of all elementary incidents 

o Health Care – 6 events  
 0.58% of all elementary events 

o Lost Time – 9 events -   
 0.87% of all elementary events 

36



  

Page 4 of 5 

 
 Total Secondary Behaviour incidents from (February 1, 2024 - April 15, 2024):                         

30 incidents 
o Hazard –19 incidents 

 63.33% of all Secondary incidents 
o First Aid – 11 incidents 

 36.67% of all Secondary incidents 
o Health Care – 0 incidents 

 0.00% of all Secondary incidents 
o Lost Time – 0 incidents 

 0.00 % of all Secondary incidents 
 Total Behaviour incidents for hazards, first aid, health care, and lost time per 

employee group from February 1, 2024 - April 15, 2024- 1067 Incidents 
 

o Educational Assistant (EA) / Child and Youth Worker (CYW) – 506 
 47.42% of total incidents 

o Education Support Staff (ESS) – 2 
 0.19% of total incidents 

o Early Child Educator (ECE) – 125 
 11.72% of total incidents 

o Elementary Teacher – 327 
 30.65% of total incidents 

o Elementary Occasional Teacher –80 
 7.50% of total incidents 

o Secondary Teacher/Occasional Teacher – 5 
 0.47% of total incidents 

o Supervision Monitors – 5 
 0.47% of total incidents 

o Administrators/MGMT – 15 
 1.41% of total incidents 

o Other – 2 
 0.19% of total incidents 

Background: 

As requested by the Board, student Behaviour data is to be provided on a quarterly 
basis. 

Financial implications: 

The financial impacts are covered within existing Board approved budget lines.  

Communications: 

A report of all workplace incidences, including student Behaviour is provided every two 
weeks to the Board’s Joint Health and Safety Committee (JHSC).   

37



  

Page 5 of 5 

Appendices:  

Appendix ‘A’ – Total Incidents: 17-25 Q3 

Appendix ‘B’ – Types of Incidents by Quarter: 17-25 Q3 

Prepared by:  Bill Lemon, Associate Director,                                                                         
Justin Brown, Senior Manager, Human Resources Services,                             
Shannon-Melissa Dunlop, Manager, Health, Safety & Security and in 
consultation with Leadership Council.                                                           

38



0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

17/18

18/19

19/20

20/21

21/22

22/23

23/24

24/25

17-18

18-19

19-20

20-21

21-22

22-23

23-24

24/25

17-18

18-19

19-20

20-21

21-22

22-23

23-24

24-25

17-18

18-19

19-20

20-21

21-22

22-23

23-24
# 

of
 In

ci
de

nt
s

Reporting Quarters (1st, 2nd, 3rd, and 4th)

Appendix 'A': Total Incidents '
17-25 Q3 Grouped by Quarter (1st, 2nd, 3rd and 4th)

39



0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

1000

17/18

18/19

19/20

20/21

21/22

22/23

23/24

24/25

17-18

18-19

19-20

20-21

21-22

22-23

23-24

24/25

17-18

18-19

19-20

20-21

21-22

22-23

23-24

24-25

17-18

18-19

19-20

20-21

21-22

22-23

23-24
# 

of
 In

ci
de

nt
s

Appendix 'B': Types of Incidents by Quarter 
'17-25 Q3 Grouped by Quarter (1st, 2nd, 3rd and 4th)

Hazard First Aid Health Care Lost Time

40



 Report to Board 
 May 25, 2025 

 Subject: Postponed Motion - Classroom Evacuation 

 Recommendations: 

 That school councils be given statistics about the number of classroom 
 evacuations at that school at each of their meetings. 

 Status 

 At the April 16, 2025, Committee of the Whole meeting, the Board of Trustees 
 approved the following motion: 

 That the Waterloo Region District School Board postpone the motion “ That school 
 councils be given statistics about the number of classroom evacuations at that school 
 at each of their meetings.” until such time as legal counsel has reviewed the motion. 

 The recommended motion above was already moved by Trustee C. Watson and 
 seconded by Trustee B. Cody on April 16, 2025. 

 Trustees will have received the confidential legal advice requested at the May 26, 2025, 
 In Camera Board Meeting. 

 Financial implications 

 The financial implications are not known at this time. 

 Communications 

 There are no communications planned at this time. 

 Prepared by:  Stephanie Reidel, Manager of Corporate Services, on behalf of 
 Chairperson M. Radlein. 

 Page  1  of  1 

41



 Report to Board 
 May 26, 2025 

 Subject:  Schedule Ad Hoc Board Committee Structure 
 Committee Recommendations 

 Recommendation 

 That the Waterloo Region District School Board schedule the Ad Hoc Board Committee 
 Structure Committee recommendations and final report for the June 9, 2025, 
 Committee of the Whole meeting for discussion. 

 Status 

 On March 17, 2025, the Waterloo Region District School Board approved the creation 
 of an Ad Hoc Board Committee Structure Committee with the following motion: 

 That the Waterloo Region District School Board form an Ad Hoc Committee to 
 review the Board’s current committee structure and recommend a committee structure 
 that would align with the new legislation and allow the board to fulfill their legislative 
 responsibilities by means other than a Committee of the Whole; and 

 That the Ad Hoc Committee review and consider the committee structures of 
 other comparative boards; and 

 That the Ad Hoc Committee recommend changes to Sections 16 and 17 of the 
 WRDSB Bylaws (July 2024) as well as any other sections which reference Committees 
 of the Whole to align the bylaws with the recommended committee structure; and 

 That the Ad Hoc Committee reports back to the board in May 2025. 

 The committee consists of the following individuals: 

 ●  Bill Cody - Trustee 
 ●  Joe Meissner - Trustee & Committee Co-Chair 
 ●  Scott Piatkowski - Trustee 
 ●  Maedith Radlein - Trustee & Board Chair 
 ●  Joanne Weston - Trustee & Committee Co-Chair 
 ●  Stephanie Reidel - Manager and Staff Support 
 ●  Scott Miller - Director of Education 

 The Committee will have met 12 times between March 2025 and May 2025 and has 
 prepared recommended changes to the WRDSB Bylaws (Appendix A). The following 
 additional draft documentation has been included: 

 ●  Draft Standing Committee Terms of Reference (Appendix B) 
 ●  Draft Agenda Templates - Board and Standing Committee (Appendix C) 

 Page  1  of  2 

42



 ●  Process to Request Virtual Attendance and Process to Request Absence 
 (Appendix D) 

 The Draft Bylaws have been sent to legal counsel for review to ensure compliance with 
 legislative requirements. If scheduling is approved, any changes suggested by legal will 
 be included in the June 9, 2025, report. The committee will hold one more meeting 
 before the June 9, 2025, Committee of the Whole meeting. 

 At this time, the committee is recommending that the Draft Bylaws be scheduled for 
 discussion at the June 9, 2025, Committee of the Whole meeting. 

 Background 

 The current WRDSB Bylaws outline the steps necessary to amend the existing bylaws: 

 1.3. Amendments and Additions to Existing Bylaws 

 1.3.1. No amendment, alteration, or addition to the bylaws shall be made unless written 
 notice outlining the proposal is presented at the meeting previous to the meeting 
 during which the item will be considered. A majority vote of the trustees present is 
 required to support the scheduling of the proposal at the next meeting. 

 1.3.2. To adopt an amendment, alteration or addition to the bylaws requires the support 
 of two-thirds of all trustees present at the meeting during which the proposal is 
 considered. 

 This report satisfies the requirements of section 1.3.1. 

 Financial implications 

 There are no known financial implications to scheduling the report for consideration. 

 Communications 

 If approved, the final report from the Ad Hoc Bylaw review committee will be included 
 in the agenda package for the June 9, 2025, Committee of the Whole meeting. 

 Prepared by:  Stephanie Reidel, Manager, Corporate Services, for the Ad Hoc Board 
 Committee Structure Committee in consultation with Leadership 
 Council 

 Page  2  of  2 

43



 Draf
t 

 Draft Bylaws Ad Hoc  Board Committee Structure Committee  Appendix A 

 Bylaws 
 Board of Trustees 
 Waterloo Region District School Board 

 Table of Contents 
 1.  Overview  2 

 2.  Board of Trustees Responsibilities  4 

 3.  Trustee Determination and Distribution  6 

 4.  Trustee Vacancies on the Board  7 

 5.  Trustee Responsibility  8 

 6.  Conflict of Interest  9 

 7.  Not  ice and Holding of Public Meetings  10 

 8.  Inaugural Meeting of the Board  12 

 9.  Organizational  Meeting  13 

 10.  Election of Chair and Vice-Chair  of the Board  13 

 11.  Duties of the Chair  of the Board  14 

 12.  Duties of the Vice-Chair  of the Board  16 

 13.  Quorum  16 

 14.  Board Meetings  17 

 15.  Delegation Procedures  17 

 16.  Committees  20 

 17.  Committee of the Whole  Standing Committees  22 

 18.  In Camera Meetings  22 

 19.  Statutory Committees  24 

 20.  Board Committees  Sub-Committees of the Board  24 

 21.  Community Committees  25 

 22.  Ad Hoc Committees  26 

 23.  Trustee Representation of Staff Committees  26 

 24.  Student Trustees  26 

 25.  Rules of Order  26 

 Effective August 31, 2025 

44



 Draf
t 

 1.  Overview 
 1.1.  Statutory Provisions 

 1.1.1.  The following bylaws of the Waterloo Region District School Board (WRDSB) shall 
 be observed for the order and dispatch of its business. All former bylaws related to 
 the Board of Trustees of the WRDSB are hereby repealed. 

 1.1.2.  All provisions in this bylaw shall be interpreted in a manner consistent with all laws 
 applicable to a public board of education in Ontario. 

 1.2.  Definitions 

 1.2.1.  For the purpose of these bylaws: 
 a.  “Ad Hoc Committee” means a committee established for a specific time frame 

 and purpose; 
 b.  “Adjourn” is to close or end the meeting. 
 c.  “Board” means the Board of Trustees of the Waterloo Region District School 

 Board, the  legislative body that is accountable to  the public for the 
 collective decisions of the district school board and for the delivery and 
 quality of educational services; 

 d.  “Board Committee” means an ongoing committee established by the Board; 
 e.  “Board meeting” means an official, regularly-scheduled or special Board 

 meeting as defined in the  Education Act  ; 
 f.  “Chair” means the Chair of the Board; 
 g.  “Committee Chair” means the Chair of  a  statutory,  standing,  Committee of the 

 Whole,  board, community or ad hoc committee of the  Board; 
 h.  “Committee of the Whole” refers to an ongoing committee established by the 

 Board, which meets on a regular basis, and with a membership that consists 
 of all Trustees; 

 i.  “Community Committee” refers to a committee(s) established to address 
 operational/system needs, initiatives and community partnerships; 

 j.  “Delegation” means a person or group who would like to speak at a  Standing 
 Committee  of the Whole  or Board meeting regarding  an issue or concern that 
 is important to them or their community, and who would like to share their 
 opinions with or provide suggestions to the Board of Trustees. 

 k.  “Director” means the Director of Education and Secretary, who is also the 
 Chief Executive Officer and Secretary of the Board; 

 l.  “  Education Act  ” means the  Education Act of Ontario  ,  R.S.O. 1990 and the 
 Regulations thereto, as amended from time to time; 

 m.  “In Camera” means closed meeting of the Board or any committee of the 
 Board from which the public is properly excluded pursuant to the  Education 
 Act  , the  Young Offenders’ Act  or the  Municipal Freedom  of Information and 
 Protection of Privacy Act  ; 

 n.  “Member” means a voting member of a Board committee; 
 o.  “Past Chair” means the most recent previous Chair, who is currently a trustee 

 of the Board; 
 p.  “Public meeting” means meetings which the public is welcome to attend, with 

 the aim of providing transparency and sharing information; 
 q.  “Quorum” means the presence of a majority of all the members constituting 

 the Board or a committee of the Board; 
 r.  “Recess” is a short break in the proceedings of a meeting during which 

 members may leave the room. A recess does not end the meeting. 

 2 

45



 Draf
t 

 s.  “Staff Committee” refers to a committee established by staff, whereas a 
 trustee may be invited to attend in order to provide guidance or feedback; 

 t.  “Standing Committee” is a permanent committee generally dealing with 
 ongoing or recurring matters, such as those specified in the legislation, and 
 are an integral part of the board structure. 

 u.  “Statutory Committee” means a committee struck as a requirement of 
 legislation; 

 v.  “Student Trustee” means a student elected to represent the interests of 
 students, pursuant to the  Education Act  ; 

 w.  “Treasurer” means the Superintendent of Business Services and Treasurer of 
 the Board; 

 x.  “Trustee” means a person elected, or acclaimed, or appointed to the office of 
 Trustee on the Board pursuant to the provisions of the  Municipal Elections Act 
 and the  Education Act  ; 

 y.  “Two-thirds majority” means a vote of two-thirds of trustees present at a 
 meeting. It is calculated by multiplying the number of trustees present by .66 
 and rounding up to the nearest whole number e.g., 11 x .66 = 7.26 and would 
 be rounded up to 8; 

 z.  “Vacancy” means when due to death, resignation, removal, or disqualification 
 for reasons pursuant to the  Education Act  , a trustee  no longer holds their 
 office; 

 aa.  “Vice-Chair” means the Vice-Chair of the Board; 
 bb.  “Working day” means any regular day of business of the WRDSB Education 

 Centre. 

 1.3.  Amendments and Additions to Existing Bylaws 

 1.3.1.  No amendment, alteration, or addition to the bylaws shall be made unless written 
 notice outlining the proposal is presented at the  Board  meeting previous to the 
 meeting during which the item will be considered. A majority vote of the trustees 
 present is required to support the scheduling of the proposal at the next meeting. 

 1.3.2.  To adopt an amendment, alteration or addition to the bylaws requires the support 
 of two-thirds of all trustees present at the  Board  meeting during which the 
 proposal is considered. 

 1.4.  Corporate Seal and Execution of Documents 

 1.4.1.  Documents required to be executed under the Corporate Seal of the Board shall 
 be signed by the Director of Education or designate, as deemed appropriate. The 
 Corporate Seal of the Board is located in Corporate Services. 

 1.4.2.  The Corporate Seal of the Board shall be in the form impressed on the original 
 copy of bylaws located in the Administrative Offices of the WRDSB. 

 1.4.3.  The Chair or the Vice-Chair of the Board and the Treasurer shall be authorized to 
 sign cheques and orders for payment of money on behalf of, and in the name of, 
 the Board. 

 1.4.4.  The Treasurer shall be authorized to endorse bills of exchange, cheques, drafts, 
 and orders for payment of money, for deposit to the credit of the Board, and to 
 receive all paid cheques and vouchers, and any documents the bank may have 
 from time to time, belonging to the Board, and to sign the bank’s form of 
 settlement and release. 

 3 

46



 Draf
t 

 1.4.5.  The Treasurer shall be authorized to sign cheques by means of a cheque signing 
 machine and a facsimile of the signatures of the Chair of the Board and the 
 Treasurer. 

 1.4.6.  The Chair of the Board and the Treasurer shall be authorized to sign all necessary 
 bank forms or documents required by the bank in respect to parts 1.4.3, 1.4.4, and 
 1.4.5 of these bylaws. 

 1.4.7.  The Treasurer shall be authorized to have printed all the necessary forms required 
 for the banking business of the Board. 

 1.4.8.  The Treasurer has the authority to negotiate property matters on behalf of the 
 Board. 

 2.  Board of Trustees’ Responsibilities 
 The  Education Act  provides for the establishment of  locally elected school boards responsible for 
 operating publicly-funded schools within their jurisdiction and for the delivery and quality of 
 educational programs and services. Legal accountability for Board decisions applies to the Board as 
 a whole rather than to individual Trustees. 

 2.1.  Board Accountability for Student Achievement and Well-Being in the Region 

 ●  Promote student achievement and well being 
 ●  Promote a positive school climate that is inclusive and accepting of all 

 students, including students of any race, ancestry, place of origin, colour, 
 ethnic origin, citizenship, creed (religion), sex, sexual orientation, gender 
 identity, gender expression, age, marital status, family status or disability 

 ●  Promote the prevention of bullying 
 ●  Deliver effective and appropriate education programs to its students 
 ●  To promote staff well being 

 2.2.  Accountability to the Provincial Government 

 ●  Act in accordance with the  Education Act,  the Regulations,  and other 
 statutory requirements to ensure the implementation of provincial 
 educational standards and policies 

 ●  Perform WRDSB functions required by provincial legislation and Board 
 policy 

 ●  Provide advice and input to the Ministry of Education regarding current or 
 evolving issues 

 2.3.  Accountability to the Community 

 ●  Promote community consultation and outreach that seeks and provides 
 communities at large with opportunities for input and the exchange of 
 ideas 

 ●  Recognize the role of individual trustees as advocates for public 
 education and as liaisons for their communities 

 ●  Annually review the communication plan to ensure that the WRDSB is 
 fulfilling its commitment to communicate with the community at large 

 ●  Provide two way communications between the WRDSB, the Board and 
 Community Committees 

 4 

47



 Draf
t 

 ●  Support the growth and development of the Parent Involvement 
 Committee, the Waterloo Region Assembly of Public School Councils 
 and school councils 

 ●  Provide reports outlining WRDSB results in accordance with provincial 
 policy 

 ●  The Audit Committee is accountable to the Board of Trustees 
 ●  Balance their governance role with their representative role, participating 

 in decision-making that benefits the whole district 

 2.4.  Policy Development, Implementation and Review 

 ●  Develop and maintain policies and organizational structures that promote 
 the board's goals and, encourage students to pursue their educational 
 goals 

 ●  Monitor and evaluate the effectiveness of policies developed by the 
 board in achieving the board's goals and the efficiency of the 
 implementation of those policies 

 ●  Ensure the processes for policy development, implementation and review 
 comply with Board Policy G300, Governance Policy – Policy 
 Development and Reviews 

 2.5.  Director/Board Relations 

 ●  Hire the Director of Education 
 ●  Monitor and evaluate the performance of the board's Director of 

 Education, or the supervisory officer acting as the board's Director of 
 Education, in meeting their duties under the  Education  Act  or any policy 
 guideline or regulation made under the  Education Act  ,  including duties 
 under the multi-year plan, and any other duties assigned by the Board 

 ●  Delegate through policy, administrative authority and responsibility 
 subject to the provisions and restrictions of the  Education Act  and 
 Regulations 

 ●  Evaluate the Director annually using the process outlined in the 
 Education Act  . At the Director’s request, provide  the Director with the 
 opportunity to meet alone with the Board in closed session 

 ●  To establish and review the employment contract of the Director, in 
 consultation with the Director and the Supervisory Officer with 
 responsibility for Human Resources. 

 2.6.  Board Development 

 ●  Conduct an annual Board self-assessment 
 ●  Develop and support an annual development plan for Trustees with the 

 ability to utilize professional resources where applicable 

 2.7.  Strategic Planning 

 ●  Develop the Multi-Year Strategic Plan aimed at achieving the board's 
 goals 

 ●  Annually review the Multi-Year Strategic Plan with the board's Director of 
 Education and develop a process for communicating this plan with the 
 system 

 ●  Annually use the  Multi-Year  Strategic Plan to drive  the budget process 

 2.8.  Fiscal Responsibility 

 5 

48



 Draf
t 

 ●  Ensure effective stewardship of the board's resources 
 ●  Ensure a budget review process is in place to help determine annual 

 resource allocations (use the  Multi-Year  Strategic  Plan and other 
 provincial and local directions) 

 ●  Annually approve the budget 
 ●  Approve, as per legislation, all capital plans and other planning 

 documents that drive budget decisions 
 ●  Ensure compliance with provincial and federal regulations 
 ●  Ratify applicable bargaining unit agreements 
 ●  Monitor significant financial expenditures and fiscal variances 

 2.9.  Political Advocacy 

 ●  Articulate the role of trustees as advocates for public education 
 ●  Develop and maintain partnerships to strengthen the advocacy role 
 ●  Meet on an ongoing basis with elected municipal, provincial and federal 

 officials 

 2.10.  Recognition 

 ●  Ensure that the WRDSB makes efforts toward recognizing all students 
 and student achievements 

 ●  Ensure that the contributions of all staff are recognized and appreciated 
 ●  Ensure that the WRDSB recognizes community members and volunteers 

 2.11.  Additional responsibilities include but are not limited to: 

 ●  Approval of school year calendars; 
 ●  Naming of educational facilities; 
 ●  Approval of tender selection for major building construction and 

 modernization; 
 ●  Approval of disposition of land and buildings; 
 ●  Approval of educational development charges; 
 ●  Approval for the issuance of debentures; 
 ●  Involvement in Superintendent interviews at the invitation of the Director. 

 3.  Trustee Determination and Distribution 
 3.1.  The number of trustees on a district school board is determined under the  Education Act 

 (Section 58.1). 

 3.2.  The distribution of trustees is governed by Ontario Regulation 412/00 (Election to and 
 Representation on District School Boards). A report is provided to the Board by staff in 
 advance of each municipal election, outlining the distribution of trustees. 

 3.3.  The WRDSB is a public corporate entity composed of eleven trustees, elected by public 
 school ratepayers for a four year term representing the seven municipalities within the 
 Regional Municipality of Waterloo: 

 a.  City of Cambridge/Township of North Dumfries - three trustees 
 b.  City of Kitchener - four trustees 
 c.  City of Waterloo/Township of Wilmot - three trustees 
 d.  Township of Wellesley/Township of Woolwich - one trustee 

 6 

49



 Draf
t 

 3.4.  The Board, as mandated by the  Education Act  , has a collective regional responsibility of 
 governance and policy making for public education in accordance with the provisions of the 
 Education Act  , its regulations and other relevant  legislation. 

 3.5.  Qualification/Disqualification  (Education Act, Section  219) 

 3.5.1.  A person is qualified to be elected as a Trustee of a district school board or school 
 authority if the person is qualified to vote for members of that district school board 
 or school authority and is a resident in its area of jurisdiction. 

 3.5.2.  A person who is qualified to be elected as a member of a district school board or 
 school authority is qualified to be elected as a member of that district school board 
 or school authority for any geographic area in the district school board’s or school 
 authority's area of jurisdiction, regardless of which positions on that district school 
 board or school authority the person may be qualified to vote for. 

 3.5.3.  A member of a district school board or school authority is eligible for re-election if 
 otherwise qualified. 

 3.5.4.  A person is not qualified to be elected or to act as a member of a district school 
 board or school authority if the person is, 
 a.  an employee of a district school board or school authority; 
 b.  the clerk or treasurer or deputy clerk or deputy treasurer of a county or 

 municipality, including a regional municipality, all or part of which is included in 
 the area of jurisdiction of the district school board or the school authority; 

 c.  a member of the Assembly or of the Senate or House of Commons of 
 Canada; or 

 d.  otherwise ineligible or disqualified under the  Education  Act  or any other Act. 

 4.  Trustee Vacancies on the Board 
 4.1.  Resignations 

 4.1.1.  Pursuant to the  Education Act  (Section 220), a member  of The Board, with the 
 consent of a majority of the members present at a meeting, entered in the minutes 
 of it, may resign as a member, but he or she shall not vote on a motion as to their 
 own resignation and may not resign as a member if the resignation will reduce the 
 number of members of the Board to less than a quorum. 

 4.1.2.  Where it is necessary for a member of the Board to resign to become a candidate 
 for some other office, the member may resign by filing their resignation, including 
 a statement that the resignation is for the purpose of becoming a candidate for 
 some other office, with the Secretary of the Board and the resignation shall 
 become effective on November 30 after it is filed or on the day preceding the day 
 on which the term of the office commences, whichever is the earlier. 

 4.2.  Removal from Office 

 4.2.1.  Pursuant to the  Education Act  (section 228), a member  of a board vacates their 
 seat if a trustee, 
 a.  is convicted of an indictable offence; 
 b.  is absent without being authorized by resolution entered in the minutes, from 

 three consecutive regular meetings of the Board; 
 c.  ceases to hold the qualifications required to act as a member of the Board; 

 7 

50



 Draf
t 

 d.  becomes disqualified under subsection 219 (4); or 
 e.  fails to be physically present as required by the regulations made under 

 clause 208.1 (1) (b) 

 4.2.2.  Where a member of the Board is convicted of an indictable offence, the vacancy 
 shall not be filled until the time for taking any appeal that may be taken from the 
 conviction has elapsed, or until the final determination of any appeal so taken, and 
 in the event of the quashing of the conviction the seat shall be deemed not to 
 have been vacated. 

 4.3.  Filling Vacancies 

 4.3.1.  The  Education Act  (Section 221) allows a Board to  fill a trustee vacancy by either 
 of two means: 
 a.  require the municipality to hold a by-election ( which would be mandatory if a 

 majority of the elected members do not remain in office and otherwise 
 optional), or 

 b.  appoint a qualified person to fill the vacancy (if a majority of the elected 
 members remain in office). 

 4.3.2.  A by-election may not be held after March 31 in an election year (i.e., within 
 approximately 8 months of a regularly scheduled municipal election). All costs for 
 a by-election are borne by the Board (subsection 7(3)  Municipal Elections Act  ). 

 4.3.3.  The method of appointment is specified in the  Education  Act (Section 221 (1) (a)). 

 4.3.4.  By-Election or Appointment.  The following steps/decisions  need to be considered: 
 a.  If a By-election, the matter is the responsibility of the municipality. The 

 process for filling a vacancy in this manner takes approximately 2-1/2 months. 
 Information regarding the implications of holding a by-election, including 
 previous election results and estimated costs, will be provided to the Board. 

 b.  If an Appointment, the  Education Act  requires the  vacancy to be filled within 
 ninety days after the office becomes vacant and priority will be given to 
 candidates who ran for the position of trustee in the most recent election. 

 c.  A member appointed or elected to fill a vacancy shall hold office for the 
 remainder of the term of the member who vacated the office. 

 4.4.  Qualifications 

 4.4.1.  The  Education Act  ,  Section 219 (1)  specifies the qualifications  necessary to be 
 elected as a member of a Board (and, presumably, to be appointed): 
 a.  qualified to vote for members of the Board; 
 b.  a resident in the area of jurisdiction of the Board; 
 c.  disqualifications are outlined in the  Education Act,  Section 219 (4) (5) (7). 

 5.  Trustee Responsibility 
 5.1.  The Board of Trustees is required to carry out its mandate as stipulated in the  Education Act, 

 and in particular, as set out in Section 169.1(1). 

 Areas of Responsibility 
 a.  Articulate the Board’s vision for education. 
 b.  Establish and monitor Board policy based on vision and provincial policy. 
 c.  Approve a budget and monitor its implementation. 

 8 

51



 Draf
t 

 d.  To advocate for a strong and vigorous public education system that benefits 
 the learners and communities served within the Region. 

 e.  To recruit, evaluate and, if necessary,  terminate the employment of a Director 
 of Education. 

 f.  To undertake directly and/or facilitate linkages with the communities and 
 public served and represented by the Board. 

 g.  To establish the strategic directions, priorities and outcomes of the Board, and 
 regularly monitor their achievement. 

 5.2.  Expectations of Trustees 

 5.2.1.  In addition to the responsibilities set down in the  Education Act (s. 218.1)  and 
 incorporated in the bylaws and procedures of the Board, an individual trustee  shall 
 be expected  to: 
 a.  Attend and participate in meetings of the board including meetings of board 

 committees of which they are a member  . 
 b.  Notify the Chair of the Board when unable to attend a Board meeting; 
 c.  Notify the Chair of the Committee when unable to attend a meeting; 
 d.  Safeguard and keep confidential, materials and information discussed or 

 placed in confidence with trustees. 
 e.  Serve on a minimum of one Standing Committee. 
 f.  Be prepared for and actively participate in discussions and decision-making; 
 g.  Ensure, when making public statements, that it is clear whether they speak on 

 behalf of the Board or as an individual trustee. Individual trustees hold no 
 authority; 

 h.  Exercise their power to govern only as a trust of the corporate body, not as an 
 individual; 

 i.  Trustees will act honestly, conscientiously, and in good faith  (Education Act 
 198(4), 253(6), 213(1,2))  ; 

 j.  Reflect community needs and attitudes while also providing leadership in 
 decision-making; 

 k.  Uphold the implementation of any board resolution after it is passed by the 
 board. 

 5.2.2.  Trustees as full participating members of the Board  may be expected  to: 
 a.  Act as a representative of the Board at official functions; 
 b.  Be involved in provincial trustee organizations and committees; 
 c.  Attend conferences, workshops, etc. in order to be kept informed of current 

 educational issues. 

 5.2.3.  Trustees  shall be expected  to model ethical practices  which include: 
 a.  Making decisions in a manner which is open, accessible and equitable; 
 b.  Approaching all Board issues with an open mind, and be prepared to make 

 the best decisions for stakeholders as a whole; 
 c.  Respecting different points of view; 
 d.  Conducting Board business through appropriate channels; 
 e.  Ensuring that public office is not used for personal gain; 
 f.  Protecting the integrity of the Board. 

 6.  Conflict of Interest 
 6.1.  At a meeting where a Trustee discloses a conflict of interest, or as soon as possible 

 afterwards, the Trustee shall file a written and signed statement of the interest and its 
 general nature with the Manager of Corporate Services. 

 9 

52



 Draf
t 

 6.1.1.  The written statement should include the following information: 
 a.  Name of Trustee 
 b.  Type of meeting 
 c.  Date of meeting matter was considered 
 d.  Subject matter/report title/agenda item 
 e.  General nature of the conflict (except if it was an in-camera meeting) 
 f.  Date of meeting at which Conflict of Interest was declared (this may have 

 been declared at the next meeting because the trustee was absent from the 
 actual meeting) 

 6.2.  The Manager of Corporate Services will maintain a registry which shall contain a copy of 
 each written statement filed under section 15.1, as well as a copy of each declaration 
 recorded. 

 6.3.  The registry maintaining the conflict of interest declarations and statements will be available 
 for public inspection when requested. 

 6.4.  When a Trustee is present at a public meeting at which a matter is being considered for 
 which they have declared a conflict of interest, they shall: 

 a.  prior to any consideration of the matter at the meeting, disclose the interest 
 and the general nature thereof, 

 b.  not take part in the discussion of, or vote on any question in respect of the 
 matter; and 

 c.  not attempt in any way whether before, during or after the meeting to influence 
 the voting on any such question. 

 6.5.  When a Trustee is present at an in-camera meeting at which a matter is being considered 
 for which they have declared a conflict of interest, they shall leave the meeting or part of the 
 meeting during which the matter is under consideration. 

 6.6.  When a Trustee’s conflict of interest has not been disclosed because of absence from a 
 meeting, the Trustee shall disclose the conflict at the first meeting attended by the Trustee 
 after the meeting in question. 

 7.  Notice and Holding of Public Meetings 
 7.1.  The Director shall give notice of all meetings of the Board, and of  the  Standing  Committee  s 

 of the Whole  , together with all matters so far as  known, that are to be brought before the 
 Board or the Committee at such meeting, to every Trustee of the Board at least 48 hours in 
 advance of the meeting. Notice of meetings of the Board and its Committees shall be 
 delivered to the WRDSB designated email address of each Trustee at least 48 hours prior to 
 the hour of each meeting. 

 7.2.  Until Trustees of the Board notify the Director in writing of their official addresses for the 
 receipt of all notices or communications, all such notices or communications delivered or 
 mailed to the Trustees at their addresses, including email, as set out in their nomination 
 papers, shall be deemed to have been received by them. 

 7.2.1.  Trustees and Student Trustees must prioritize the completion of “Onboarding 
 Forms” to ensure WRDSB designated email addresses are set up in a timely 
 manner. In Camera Agenda Packages and confidential communications can only 
 be sent to WRDSB designated email addresses. 

 10 

53



 Draf
t 

 7.3.  Accidental omission to give notice to any Trustee or member of a committee, or the 
 non-receipt of any notice, or any error in any notice not affecting the substance thereof shall 
 not invalidate any action taken at any meeting held pursuant to such notice or founded 
 thereon. 

 7.4.  Trustees not able to access the notice and agenda at least 48 hours prior to the Board 
 meeting will be responsible for notifying the Corporate Services Department of such. 

 7.5.  The Chair of the Board or the Vice-Chair, in the absence of the Chair, in consultation with the 
 Director or designate, shall have the authority to call a special meeting of the Board during 
 an emergency without having given the required 48 hours notice if there is an urgent matter 
 requiring the Board’s consideration. 

 7.6.  Attendance of staff members at meetings will be determined by the Director. 

 7.7.  ELECTRONIC MEETINGS AND MEETING ATTENDANCE 

 7.7.1.  At the request of any trustee, including a student trustee, the Board shall provide 
 electronic means for participating in meetings of the Board (regular or special) or 
 of a standing committee of the board: 
 a.  if the trustee complies with s. 7.7.1 and receives written approval from the 

 Chair of the Board or Standing Committee before the meeting begins based 
 on one or more of the circumstances in s. 7.7.6 below; or 

 b.  if to do so is necessary to ensure compliance with s. 7.7.9 below. 

 7.7.2.  If a trustee proposes to participate in a meeting by electronic means, the trustee 
 shall submit a request in writing and the reasons for the request to the Chair of the 
 Board or Standing Committee, or in the absence of the Chair, the Vice-Chair, 
 before the meeting begins, ideally before noon on the day of the meeting. 

 7.7.3.  If the trustee making a request under s.7.7 is the Chair of the Board, the Chair 
 shall submit the request and reasons to the Vice-Chair of the Board. 

 7.7.4.  The Chair or Vice-Chair, as applicable, may approve a request if they are satisfied 
 that one or more of the circumstances identified in s.7.7.6 exist. 

 7.7.5.  Student trustees may always participate in these Board or Standing Committee 
 meetings by electronic means and do not require approval to do so but are 
 required to submit a request before the meeting begins, ideally before noon on the 
 day of the meeting. 

 7.7.6.  The circumstances for approval to attend by electronic means are: 
 a.  weather conditions do not allow the trustee to travel to the meeting location 

 safely; 
 b.  the trustee cannot be physically present at a meeting due to health-related 

 issues; 
 c.  the trustee has a disability that makes it challenging to be physically present 

 at a meeting; or, 
 d.  the trustee cannot be physically present due to family responsibilities in 

 respect of: 
 7.7.6.d.1.  the trustee’s spouse; 
 7.7.6.d.2.  a parent, step-parent, or foster parent of the trustee or the 

 trustee’s spouse; 
 7.7.6.d.3.  a child, step-child, foster child, or child who is under legal 

 guardianship of the trustee or the trustee’s spouse; 

 11 

54



 Draf
t 

 7.7.6.d.4.  a relative of the trustee who is dependent on the trustee for care 
 or assistance; or, 

 7.7.6.d.5.  a person who is dependent on the trustee for care or assistance 
 and who considers the trustee to be like a family member. 

 7.7.7.  The Chair shall not approve a request for a trustee to participate by electronic 
 means in a regular board meeting if the request would result in fewer than one 
 trustee of the board, in addition to the Chair of the Board or their designate, being 
 physically present in the meeting room. 

 7.7.8.  The Vice-Chair or other member of the board shall not approve a request for the 
 Chair of the Board to participate by electronic means in a regular board meeting 
 unless the Chair’s designate, who will chair the meeting, will be physically present 
 in the meeting room. 

 7.7.9.  The Vice-Chair or other member of the Standing Committee shall not approve a 
 request for the Chair of the Standing Committee to participate by electronic means 
 in a Standing Committee meeting unless the Chair’s designate, who will chair the 
 meeting, will be physically present in the meeting room. 

 7.7.10.  A trustee who participates in a meeting through electronic means in accordance 
 with Ontario Regulation 463/97 is deemed to be present at the meeting. 

 7.7.11.  The electronic means shall permit all persons participating in the meeting to 
 communicate with each other simultaneously and instantaneously. 

 7.7.12.  A trustee vacates their seat if they absent themselves without being authorized by 
 resolution of the board entered in the minutes, from three consecutive regular 
 meetings of the board (s.228(1)(b) of the Education Act. 

 7.7.13.  The Director of Education or their designate shall be physically present in the 
 meeting room for Board meetings and standing committee meetings except when 
 all schools of the board are closed pursuant to s. 7.7.14 below. 

 7.7.14.  If all schools of the board are closed under an order made in accordance with 
 Ontario Regulation 463/97 then the requirement for the physical attendance at any 
 meetings by a trustee or the Director of Education is not required in accordance 
 with that Regulation and all trustees and student trustees may participate 
 electronically as of right and without requesting approval. 

 7.7.15.  Except for In Camera meetings, the meeting room of the Board or of a Standing 
 Committee of the board shall be open to permit physical attendance by members 
 of the public at every regular meeting unless all schools of the board are closed, 
 as described in s.7.7.14 above. 

 7.7.16.  The Board shall provide members of the public with the ability to connect 
 electronically to a meeting of the board or of a standing committee of the board. 
 The electronic means used shall permit the public to hear the meeting, and where 
 permitted by the board (example, a delegate), to participate in a meeting so all 
 participants in the meeting shall be able to communicate with each other 
 simultaneously and instantaneously. 

 7.7.17.  At all meetings at which a trustee, including a student trustee, participates by 
 electronic means, it is the responsibility of those trustees to comply with the 
 requirements of the Municipal Conflict of Interest Act, including, in the case of a 

 12 

55



 Draf
t 

 meeting that is closed to the public, to disconnect from the electronic participation 
 for so long as is necessary in order to so comply. 

 7.7.18.  The Board shall ensure that appropriate processes are put in place to ensure the 
 security and confidentiality of electronic participation in proceedings held during 
 meetings that are closed to the public, including ensuring student trustees who 
 participate through electronic means do not participate in any proceedings that are 
 closed to the public under clause 207(2)(b) of the Education Act. 

 Electronic Meetings  (O. Reg. 463/97: Electronic Meetings  And Meeting Attendance) 

 7.7.19.  At every Board and Committee of the Whole meeting, the following persons shall 
 be physically present in the meeting room of the Board: 
 a.  The Chair or their designate, subject to subsection 5.1 (1) of  O. Reg 463/97. 
 b.  At least one additional Trustee; 
 c.  The Director or their designate; 
 d.  The Manager of Corporate Services or their designate; 
 e.  Information Technology Services staff. 

 7.7.20.  At the request of any Trustee or Student Trustee, the Board shall provide 
 electronic means of participating in meetings of the Board or Committee of the 
 Whole except where to do so would not comply with the  Education Act. 
 a.  The Board is permitted to refuse to provide a member with electronic means 

 of participation in a meeting of the Board, a meeting of a Committee of the 
 Whole or a meeting of any other committee of the board, where to do so is 
 necessary to ensure compliance with section 7.7.1. 

 7.7.21.  A Trustee of the Board who participates in a meeting through electronic means 
 shall be deemed to be present at the meeting and is counted towards quorum. 

 7.7.22.  Subject to 7.7.1, a member of the Board shall be physically present in the meeting 
 room of the board for at least three regular meetings of the Board during each 
 12-month period beginning November 15, 2022. 

 7.7.23.  If a member of the Board is elected or appointed to fill a vacancy on or after 
 November 15, 2022, the member shall be physically present in the meeting room 
 of the board for at least one regular meeting of the board for each period of four 
 full calendar months that occurs during the period beginning on the day the 
 member is elected or appointed and ending the following November 14. 

 7.7.24.  The Chair or designate must be physically present for at least half of the meetings 
 of the board for 12 month period beginning November 15. 

 7.7.25.  Section 7.7.1, 7.7.4 and 7.7.5 does not apply if all schools of the board are closed 
 for a total of two or more months during that period pursuant to an order made by, 
 a.  the Minister under section 5 (1) of the  Education  Act  ; 
 b.  a medical officer of health or the Chief Medical Officer of Health under section 

 22 or 77.1 of the  Health Protection and Promotion  Act; 
 c.  the Lieutenant Governor in Council under paragraph 5 of subsection 7.0.2 (4) 

 of the  Emergency Management and Civil Protection Act;  or 
 d.  the Lieutenant Governor in Council under clause 4 (1) (a) of the  Reopening 

 Ontario (A Flexible Response to COVID-19) Act, 2020.  O. Reg. 232/20, s. 3; 
 O. Reg. 416/21, s. 1 (2). 

 13 

56

https://www.ontario.ca/laws/regulation/970463


 Draf
t 

 7.7.26.  The electronic means shall permit the trustee to hear and be heard by all other 
 participants in the meeting and a method of conveying votes and gaining the floor 
 will be determined prior to the meeting. 

 a.  The Trustee who is participating electronically shall be responsible for 
 correcting technical problems including disruptive noise and accidental 
 disconnections that occur as a result of problems with the Trustee’s 
 environment or equipment. 

 7.7.27.  Where a meeting or part of a meeting is to be held in camera, the Trustee 
 participating electronically must not be in a location where an unauthorized 
 individual is able to hear the Trustee or the meeting discussion. 

 Special Board and Special  Standing Committees  Committee  of the Whole  Meetings 

 7.8.  Special Board  and Committee of the Whole  meetings  shall be held at the call of the Chair  of 
 the Board  or at the written request of five Trustees  made to the Chair. 24 hours notice is 
 required. The meeting may be held at a date, time and place established by decision of the 
 Chair  of the Board  , or if absent, the Vice-Chair,  or if absent, the Director of Education. 

 7.9.  Special Standing Committee meetings shall be held at the call of the Committee Chair or at 
 the written request of three Trustees made to the Committee Chair. 24 hours notice is 
 required. The meeting may be held at a date, time and place established by decision of the 
 Committee Chair, or if absent, the Committee Vice-Chair, or if absent, the Director of 
 Education. 

 7.10.  The written notice of every special meeting  of the  Board and Committee of the Whole  shall 
 state all business to be transacted or considered. No other business shall be considered 
 unless all the Trustees of the Board  or Standing Committee  are present and agree 
 unanimously. 

 Adjournment of  Board  Meetings 

 7.11.  All public Board  and Committee of the Whole  meetings  will adjourn  by  at  9:30 pm unless 
 otherwise agreed to by trustees. 

 7.12.  An extension of 30 minutes beyond this adjournment time requires the majority vote of 
 trustees present at the meeting. 

 7.13.  At 10:00 pm a second extension of an additional 30 minutes requires two-thirds support of 
 all trustees present at the meeting. 

 7.14.  At 10:30 pm a third extension of an additional 30 minutes requires unanimous support of all 
 trustees present at the meeting. 

 7.15.  At 11:00 p.m. the meeting will be adjourned. 

 Adjournment of Standing Committee Meetings 

 7.16.  All public Standing Committee meetings will adjourn after 2 hours unless otherwise agreed 
 to by trustees. 

 7.17.  An extension of 30 minutes beyond this adjournment time requires the majority vote of 
 trustees present at the meeting. 

 14 

57



 Draf
t 

 7.18.  An extension of an additional 30 minutes requires unanimous support of all trustees present 
 at the meeting. 

 7.19.  Standing Committee meetings shall not continue beyond 3 hours. 

 8.  Inaugural Meeting of the Board 
 8.1.  In accordance with the provisions of the  Education  Act  , following a municipal election, the 

 Board’s inaugural meeting shall be held no later than seven days after November 15th in the 
 boardroom of the WRDSB Education Centre at 7:00 p.m. at a Special Board meeting. 

 8.2.  In accordance with the provisions of the  Education  Act  , the Director shall preside until the 
 election of the Chair of the Board. If the Director is absent, the Director shall designate who 
 shall preside at the election of the Chair. 

 8.3.  At the inaugural meeting following the election of a new Board, after calling the meeting to 
 order, the Director or designated Chair  pro tem  (temporary),  shall read the return (if any) of 
 the municipal clerks along with a statement that the Declaration of Office and Oath of 
 Allegiance have been completed and filed, pursuant to the provisions of the  Education Act  . 

 8.4.  Following the election of the Chair, the Chair shall preside over the meeting and shall 
 proceed with the election of the Vice-Chair and other inaugural and organizational business. 

 9.  Organizational Meeting 
 9.1.  In the years that do not follow a municipal election, the organizational meeting shall be held 

 in the boardroom of the WRDSB Education Centre at 7:00 pm at a Special Board meeting to 
 be held. The Chair and Vice-Chair for the ensuing year, shall be elected at the first meeting 
 on or after November 15  . 

 9.2.  The newly-elected Chair shall deliver an inaugural address. 

 10.  Election of Chair and Vice-Chair  of the Board 
 10.1.  The Chair and Vice-Chair for the ensuing year, shall be elected at the first meeting  of the 

 Board on or after November 1  5  (Education Act  , section  208). 

 10.2.  The Director, or Director’s designate, shall preside over the election of the Chair for the 
 ensuing year. 

 10.3.  The Director, or Director’s designate, shall name two scrutineers appointed for the election 
 of Chair and Vice-Chair. 

 10.4.  Election Process 

 10.4.1.  The Director or designate shall call for verbal nominations for the office of Chair. 
 No seconder is required. 

 10.4.2.  After all nominees have been identified, in random order they will be asked to 
 declare whether they accept the nomination. 

 10.4.3.  After a suitable length of time, and after a motion to close nominations has been 
 supported by a majority vote, the Director or designate shall declare nominations 
 closed. 

 15 

58



 Draf
t 

 10.4.4.  An individual who is absent may be considered a candidate if the individual has 
 previously indicated in writing to the Director a desire to stand for election if 
 nominated. 

 10.4.5.  The nominees shall be offered the opportunity to speak to their nomination in 
 random order for a maximum of two minutes each. 

 10.4.6.  A vote by secret ballot shall then be conducted with each Trustee present able to 
 cast one vote. 

 10.4.7.  The Trustee receiving a majority of the votes cast shall be declared elected, but 
 the count shall not be declared. 

 10.4.8.  Should no Trustee receive a majority of the votes cast, the Director or designate, 
 shall announce the names of the Trustees remaining on the ballot with the name 
 of the Trustee receiving the fewest number of votes being dropped from the list of 
 candidates. 

 10.4.9.  Should there be a tie vote between candidates with the least number of votes, 
 there will be a vote including only the candidates with the tie votes to eliminate the 
 candidate with the fewest votes. In the event there is a tie vote after the candidate 
 with the least number has been withdrawn, the Director or designate will call for 
 the drawing of lots. The candidate whose name is drawn will be declared the 
 Chair of the Board for the ensuing year. 

 10.4.10.  A Trustee may voluntarily withdraw their name between votes. 

 10.4.11.  By motion, the ballots shall be destroyed. 

 10.5.  Following the election, the newly-elected Chair shall at once take the chair and preside over 
 the election of the Vice-Chair. 

 10.6.  Trustees shall then elect a Vice-Chair of the Board according to the same procedure 
 followed for the election of the Chair. 

 10.7.  In the event the office of the Chair or Vice-Chair becomes vacant for any reason, a new 
 Chair or Vice-Chair as is required, shall be elected at a special Board meeting called for this 
 purpose (See 6.5 Election Process above). 

 10.8.  The Officers of the WRDSB shall be: 

 ●  The Chair of the Board; 
 ●  The Vice-Chair of the Board; 
 ●  The Director of Education and Secretary; 
 ●  The Coordinating Superintendent of Business Services and Treasurer of 

 the Board. 

 10.9.  The following sets out the term and tenure for Board Chair and Vice-Chair as noted: 

 16 

59



 Draf
t 

 Office  Length of Term  Maximum Consecutive 
 Allowable Terms 

 Board Chair  1 Year 
 or until their successor is elected 

 2 Terms 

 Board Vice-Chair  1 Year 
 or until their successor is elected 

 2 Terms 

 Following the completion of the maximum number of terms noted in the table above, the 
 member officer in question shall step down for a period of one year before holding that office 
 again, except in the case of a member making a bid for a higher office. 

 10.10.  In the case of a partial term for the position of Chair or Vice-Chair of less than one year, six 
 months or more shall be defined as a term. 

 11.  Duties of the Chair  of the Board 
 11.1.  The Chair of the Board shall be the Board’s official spokesperson  , including for standing 

 committees,  unless otherwise determined. 

 11.2.  The Chair, in consultation with the Director and the Agenda Development Committee, with 
 opportunity for input from other Trustees of the Board, shall set the agendas for the 
 regularly-scheduled Board and  Standing  Committee  of  the Whole  meetings and ensure that 
 Trustees have sufficient information for informed discussion.  The Chair shall move 
 proceedings through the approved agenda for the meeting. 

 11.3.  The Chair of the Board shall preside at all Board  and Committee of the Whole  meetings. In 
 the Chair’s absence, the Vice-Chair shall chair such meetings. In the absence of both, the 
 Past Chair shall chair such meetings. In the absence of all, Trustees shall elect a chair from 
 amongst the trustees present at the meeting. 

 11.4.  The Chair shall call the  Board  meeting to order at  the hour appointed, shall preserve order 
 and decorum and decide upon all questions of order subject to an appeal to the Board. 

 11.5.  The Chair shall not take part in any debate  during  a Board meeting  without leaving the 
 Chair. 

 11.6.  The Chair shall have voting rights on all matters. The Chair may vote on all matters that 
 Trustees vote on, thus providing consistency in voting. 

 11.7.  The Chair shall ensure that any Trustee wishing to speak  during a Board meeting  shall so 
 indicate by upraised hand, and upon recognition by the Chair, who shall call the Trustee by 
 name (Trustee ______), the Trustee shall then address the Chair. 

 11.8.  When two or more Trustees attempt to speak  during  a Board meeting  at the same time, the 
 Chair shall name the Trustee who is to speak. 

 11.9.  The Chair shall also ensure that Trustees direct all comments through the Chair and avoid 
 all personal remarks and discourteous language. 

 11.10.  The Chair of the Board meeting is responsible for maintaining order and seeing that 
 appropriate decorum of the Board meeting is maintained. Disruptions by the public will not 
 be permitted. Applause, booing or other audible or visual demonstrations of support or 

 17 

60



 Draf
t 

 opposition may be intimidating for those with opposing views. The Chair may expel or 
 exclude from any  Board  meeting any person(s) who engage  in this or any other form of 
 improper conduct. Prohibition on visual demonstrations shall not be construed to prohibit 
 expressions of identity related to characteristics protected under the Ontario Human Rights 
 Code. Courtesy and respect for others must be displayed at all times. 

 11.11.  The Chair may expel or exclude from any meeting any person(s) who engage in 
 unauthorized audio, video, or photographic recordings at any Board  or Committee of the 
 Whole  meeting  s  of the WRDSB. Authorization for audio,  video, or photographs will be at the 
 discretion of the Chair. 

 11.12.  The Chair of the Board shall be a member of all Standing Committees. 

 11.13.  The Chair of the Board shall be an ex-officio member of all Statutory,  sub-committees of the 
 Board,  Community and Ad Hoc committees,  Committees,  shall have voice and vote, and 
 shall have the power to delegate the Vice-Chair of the Board to serve on any committee in 
 the absence of the Chair in which case the Vice-Chair shall have voice and vote. 

 11.14.  The Chair of the Board, on completion of their duties as Chair, will hold the position of 
 Past-Chair until they are no longer the immediate Past-Chair or a two year term whichever 
 shall occur first. 

 11.14.1.  In an election year, where the Chair of the Board is not re-elected, the 
 Past-Chair position is held by a previous Chair as recommended by the Chair 
 and Vice-Chair and determined by Board approval. 

 12.  Duties of the Vice-Chair  of the Board 
 12.1.  The Vice-Chair of the Board shall chair the Agenda Development Committee.  In the 

 Vice-Chair’s absence, the Chair shall chair such meetings. In the absence of both, the Past 
 Chair shall chair such meetings. 

 12.2.  The Vice-Chair of the Board shall chair the Director’s Performance Appraisal Committee. 

 12.3.  In the absence of the Chair from any Board  or Committee  of the Whole  meeting, the 
 Vice-Chair shall preside at the meeting. During the continued absence of the Chair from 
 duty, or upon written request of the Chair, the Vice-Chair shall perform all the duties of the 
 Chair. 

 13.  Quorum 
 13.1.  A quorum of the Board shall consist of a majority of Trustees elected or appointed to the 

 Board under the  Education Act  . Quorum must be present  in order that business can be 
 legally transacted. 

 13.2.  Request to be Absent from a Board Meeting 

 13.2.1.  Under the Education Act [s. 228(1) (b)], a trustee’s seat is automatically vacated if 
 the trustee is absent from three consecutive regular meetings of the board, unless 
 the absence is authorized by the board of trustees. 

 13.2.2.  The Board gives the Chair and Vice-Chair the authority to approve absences on 
 behalf of the Board and will notify the board at the next board meeting of any 
 absences as part of the Consent Agenda. 

 18 

61



 Draf
t 

 13.2.3.  Trustees shall follow the process outlined in “Request for Approved Absence from 
 a Board Meeting” to request approval from the Chair and Vice-Chair of the Board 
 for their absence. 

 13.3.  Trustees unable to attend scheduled Board and Committee of the Whole meetings should 
 notify the Manager of Corporate Services and the Chair as early as possible.  If it appears 
 quorum will be lacking, the Chair will instruct the Manager of Corporate Services to notify 
 trustees of the postponement or cancellation of the meeting. 

 13.4.  Should there be no quorum present at the time appointed for the meeting, the Chair shall 
 seek the advice and consent of Trustees as to what action should be taken.  Trustees  The 
 Board  may: 

 a.  Cancel the meeting; 
 b.  Continue the meeting, recognizing that no formal action may be taken; 
 c.  Wait up to thirty minutes after the appointed time for the meeting for quorum to 

 be present. 

 Should no quorum be present within thirty minutes after the appointed time for the meeting, 
 the Manager of Corporate Services shall record the names of the Trustees present and the 
 time, and the meeting shall be cancelled, unless Trustees present direct that the meeting 
 continue, recognizing that no formal action may be taken. 

 13.5.  When a quorum is no longer in attendance, no business may be transacted but reports for 
 information may be heard. It shall be the responsibility of the presiding Chair and the 
 Director of Education to note the lack of a quorum and to have that fact recorded in the 
 minutes. 

 13.6.  The Chair, or Vice-Chair, as the case may be, shall count in forming a quorum. 

 13.7.  Trustees who attend through electronic means shall be included in the quorum count. 

 13.7.1.  A Trustee who is participating electronically shall  follow the rules for virtual 
 Attendance: 

 a.  Trustees shall keep their camera on during the meeting unless prior 
 arrangements have been made with the Chair for extenuating circumstances 
 such as illness or poor wifi connection. 

 b.  Trustees leaving the meeting, briefly or otherwise, shall indicate their 
 departure and return in the meeting chat. 

 c.  Trustees shall vote and indicate requests to speak by using the Raise Hand 
 function in the virtual meeting. 

 d.  For In Camera meetings, Trustees shall not take the meeting in a location 
 where unauthorized individuals are able to hear the Trustee or the meeting 
 discussion 

 inform the Chair, in a manner determined by the Chair, of every instance they 
 enter and leave the meeting, whether it is a temporary or permanent absence, to 
 ensure the Chair knows at all times who is “in the room”. 

 13.7.2.  The record of the meeting shall indicate that the Trustee was present and 
 participated by electronic means. 

 19 

62



 Draf
t 

 13.8.  The Manager of Corporate Services shall record the names of the Trustees present and 
 absent. The times of arrival and departure of Trustees not attending the entire  meeting shall 
 be recorded in the minutes. Absence during any vote will be recorded. 

 14.  Board Meetings 
 14.1.  The Chair of the Board shall chair all Board meetings. In the Chair’s absence, the Vice-Chair 

 shall chair such meetings. In the absence of both, the Past Chair shall chair such meetings. 
 In the absence of all, Trustees shall elect a chair from amongst the Trustees present at the 
 meeting who shall preside over the meeting until such time as the Chair, Vice-Chair or Past 
 Chair arrives. 

 14.2.  The regular monthly meetings of the Board shall be held in public session on the last 
 working Monday of each month during the school year, September to June, commencing at 
 7:00 p.m. Meetings will be rescheduled if they fall on a WRDSB designated  Creed 
 Accommodation Day  .  Board meetings will be held in  the boardroom of the WRDSB 
 Education Centre. Additionally, Board meetings may be held the first working Monday in 
 July, if required, and the last working Monday in August, if required. 

 14.3.  Regular meetings in any month may be cancelled or rescheduled by Board resolution at a 
 preceding regular meeting. 

 14.4.  In unusual circumstances, at the discretion of the Chair and in consultation with the 
 Vice-Chair and the Director, a regular meeting may be cancelled or rescheduled. 

 14.5.  Copies of reports to be presented to a Board meeting shall be made available with the 
 notice of such meeting. 

 14.6.  If new items of business arise at the meeting, they may be considered by decision of 
 two-thirds of the Trustees present. 

 14.7.  A quorum is necessary to hold a Board meeting. 

 14.8.  All Board meetings will begin with a territorial acknowledgement, followed by the singing of 
 the Canadian national anthem. 

 14.9.  An opportunity for the public to present as a delegation to the Board regarding issues of 
 concern/interest will be included on the agenda of Board meetings. 

 14.10.  Minutes will be taken at all Board meetings and must be submitted for receipt at the next 
 regularly-scheduled Board meeting. Minutes are a concise and official record of the 
 proceedings of a meeting, containing what was done in the meeting but not what was said. 

 15.  Delegation Procedures 
 15.1.  The WRDSB is committed to strengthening connections through family and community 

 engagement. One opportunity for engagement is through delegations. 

 15.2.  Delegations wishing to appear before the WRDSB at a Board, or  Standing  Committee  of the 
 Whole  meeting should register with the Manager of  Corporate Services  by noon  3 business 
 days  on the Thursday  prior to the meeting. Delegations  not making prior arrangements by 
 noon  3 business days prior to the meeting  on Thursday  may still register until noon  on the 
 day of the meeting  Monday  and may be added to the  agenda only on the approval of a 
 majority vote of the trustees  present  , up to a maximum  of ten (10) delegates. 

 20 

63

https://staff.wrdsb.ca/resources6/days-of-significance-and-cultural-celebrations/religious-accommodation-days/
https://staff.wrdsb.ca/resources6/days-of-significance-and-cultural-celebrations/religious-accommodation-days/


 Draf
t 

 15.3.  Delegations are asked to make submissions in writing which contain the speaker’s full 
 name, contact information (including telephone number[s] and home address), a complete 
 copy of the presentation which should include suggestion(s) for resolving the matter. A 
 Delegation Submission Template can be accessed via the Board’s website 
 (  https://www.wrdsb.ca/trustees/become-a-delegate/  )  and can be completed online, or a hard 
 copy can be submitted to the Manager of Corporate Services. The WRDSB will provide 
 appropriate accommodations based on any of the human rights protected grounds to 
 support delegations. 

 15.3.1.  Delegations must be WRDSB students and their caregivers and families, Region 
 of Waterloo residents who direct property taxes to support WRDSB and Bona fide 
 experts on a topic under consideration by the board for information only. 

 15.3.2.  Delegates are permitted to use visual presentations to aid in the delegation. Visual 
 presentations must adhere to relevant legislations including, but not limited to, the 
 Ontario Human Rights Code (OHRC)  and the  Municipal  Freedom of Information 
 and Protection of Privacy Act (MFIPPA)  . This presentation  must be provided to the 
 Manager of Corporate Services by noon on the Thursday before the meeting in a 
 format agreed to in advance. 

 15.4.  Any request to delegate at a  Committee of Whole,  Standing  Committee  or Board meeting 
 may be approved at the good faith discretion of the Chair  of the Board  who shall, in 
 considering whether to grant approval: 

 a.  Consider if the individual has followed the appropriate steps to resolve the 
 concern through  The Process for Addressing Concerns  outlined on the 
 WRDSB Website. 

 b.  Consider if the matter is within the scope and authority of the Board of 
 Trustees or whether the matter is operational in nature or within the 
 jurisdiction of the Ministry of Education or some other entity; 

 c.  Consider whether the proposed delegation would be consistent with the 
 Board’s commitments and statutory duties and responsibilities under the 
 Education Act  , the Ontario Human Rights Code and the  Board’s Human 
 Rights Policy. 

 15.4.2.  If there is a concern with the manner in which a proposed delegation is designed 
 or framed, the requester is to be given an opportunity to rectify the issues prior to 
 any denial. If the denial is maintained, the proposed delegation shall be circulated 
 to all trustees by email with a summary note as to the nature of the denial. 

 15.4.3.  A delegation can speak to the same topic, or one deemed substantially the same, 
 only once within a 12-month period unless the delegation has substantial new 
 information. 

 15.5.  At regular Board meetings, delegations may speak only to matters relevant to those items 
 listed on the agenda. All other presentations will be referred to  the relevant Standing 
 Committee  of the Whole meetings  . 

 15.6.  The Board shall provide members of the public with electronic means for delegating at 
 meetings. The electronic means shall permit members of the public to hear and be heard by 
 all other participants in the meeting. 

 15.7.  Delegations will be permitted to address Trustees for a period of up to five minutes. 
 Exceptions to this rule will be permitted only by a majority vote of the Trustees present. 

 21 

64

https://www.wrdsb.ca/trustees/become-a-delegate/
https://www.wrdsb.ca/our-schools/communicating-with-your-school/addressing-concerns/


 Draf
t 

 15.8.  Delegations will be scheduled to appear at the beginning of  the  a  Board or  standing 
 Committee  of the Whole  meetings. A maximum of ten  (10) delegates will be scheduled per 
 meeting. 

 15.9.  The  standing  Committee  of the Whole  may consider or  act on any request from a delegation 
 during the same meeting at which the delegation is made only if approved by a vote of 
 two-thirds (2/3) of the Trustees present at the meeting, or if consideration of the matter was 
 included on the meeting agenda. If the issue is not listed on the agenda, then trustees may 
 opt to present a motion to: 

 a.  refer it to staff for follow-up, or request that it be included on a future meeting 
 agenda, or 

 b.  add the item to the meeting agenda which would require a two-thirds vote of 
 the trustees present to vote in favour of adding it to the agenda 

 15.9.2.  At the discretion of the Chair  of the meeting  , the  Director  or designate  may 
 request an opportunity for staff to provide clarity to a delegation in order to assist 
 trustees in understanding the matter. 

 15.10.  Delegates are expected to refrain from the use of abusive or derogatory language at all 
 times and the Chair may expel or exclude from any meeting any person(s) who engage in 
 this or any other form of improper conduct. Applause, booing or other audible or visual 
 demonstrations of support or opposition are discouraged because they may be intimidating 
 for those with opposing views. Prohibition on visual demonstrations shall not be construed to 
 prohibit expressions of identity related to characteristics protected under the Ontario Human 
 Rights Code. Courtesy and respect for others must be displayed at all times. Disruptions by 
 the public will not be permitted. 

 15.11.  A delegate cannot register for more than one place on the agenda, and that place is not 
 transferable to another party unless extenuating circumstances exist (e.g. illness of 
 delegate). 

 15.12.  Delegations may be received at  Committee of the Whole  in camera meetings as per the 
 Education Act  . The procedures for delegations, as  set out in Article 15 will apply. 

 15.13.  Special Delegation Meetings 

 Special meetings to hear delegations may be scheduled, when warranted (e.g. 
 accommodation reviews, budget). The Chair of the Board or the Vice-Chair, in the absence 
 of the Chair, in consultation with the Director or designate, shall have the authority to call a 
 special meeting. The Chair in consultation with the Director or designate, shall decide the 
 length of meeting and number of delegations to receive. 

 15.13.1.  Delegations wishing to appear before the WRDSB at a Special Delegation 
 Meeting must register with the Manager of Corporate Services two working days 
 prior to the meeting. 

 15.13.2.  Delegations are asked to make submissions in writing which contain the 
 speaker’s full name, contact information (including telephone number[s] and 
 home address), and a complete copy of the presentation. A Delegation 
 Submission Template can be accessed via the Board’s website at 
 (  https://www.wrdsb.ca/trustees/become-a-delegate/register-delegation/  )  and can 
 be completed online, or a hard copy can be submitted to the Manager of 
 Corporate Services. 

 22 

65

https://www.wrdsb.ca/trustees/become-a-delegate/register-delegation/


 Draf
t 

 15.13.3.  Where not specifically outlined in Sections 15.13, Special Delegation meetings 
 will follow regular Delegation Procedures. 

 16.  Committees 
 16.1.  The Board’s committee structure and operation consists of the following: 

 16.1.1.  Standing Committees  are  ongoing committee established  by the Board: 
 a.  Business Services Standing Committee 
 b.  Student Achievement and Well-Being Standing Committee 
 c.  Policy and Governance Standing Committee 

 Committee of the Whole  exists to assist the Board  in fulfilling its duties related to 
 governance and oversight with a system wide focus by providing advice on 
 system issues related to Programming and School Services, Business, Finance 
 and Facilities/Capital Planning. This committee is comprised of the full 
 membership of the Board. 

 16.1.2.  In-Camera  meetings  exist to address ongoing confidential  matters per the 
 Education Act  and includes the full membership of  the Board  . 

 16.1.3.  Statutory Committees  are established as directed per  the  Education  Act  or other 
 legislation/regulation. 
 a.  Audit Committee 
 b.  Discipline Committee 
 c.  Parent Involvement Committee (PIC) 
 d.  Special Education Advisory Committee (SEAC) 
 e.  Student Program Review/Student Alternative Learning Committee (SAL) 
 f.  Director Performance Appraisal Committee (DPA) 

 16.1.4.  Board  Sub-  Committees  of the Board  are  means  an  ongoing  committee  s 
 established by the Board: 
 a.  Agenda Development Committee 
 b.  Director Performance Appraisal Committee 
 c.  Student Trustee and Student Mentors 
 d.  School Year Calendar Committee 
 e.  Policy Working Group 

 16.1.5.  Community Committees  are established by staff to address  operational/system 
 needs, initiatives and community partnerships: 
 a.  Equity and Inclusion Advisory Group 
 b.  Mental Health and Addiction Strategy Working Group 
 c.  School Year Calendar Committee 

 16.1.6.  Ad Hoc Committee  s  are  means a  committee  s  established  to respond to specific 
 issues. They have a defined task and timeline for completion. 

 16.2.  The membership, tenure, terms of reference, powers, and duties of  Standing, In Camera, 
 Statutory,  Committee of the Whole, Committee of the  Whole In-Camera,  , Sub-Committees of 
 the  Board, Community and Ad Hoc Committees shall be  as required by law, collective 
 agreement, or as approved by the Board and set forth in these bylaws. 

 23 

66



 Draf
t 

 16.3.  Minutes will be taken at all  Committee of the Whole,  Audit Committee, Parent Involvement 
 Committee (PIC), and Special Education Advisory Committee (SEAC) meetings and must 
 be submitted for approval at regular monthly Board meetings. 

 16.4.  Minutes will be taken at all Standing Committee meetings and must be submitted for 
 approval at regular monthly Board meetings. 

 16.5.  Recommendations from all Standing Committees will be presented in a report for approval 
 at regular monthly Board meetings. 

 16.6.  For Statutory, Board,  Standing,  Community and Ad Hoc  committees, only members of that 
 committee shall elect a Chair and Vice-Chair from among themselves with the exception of 
 the Agenda Development Committee  and Director Performance  Appraisal Committee  which 
 is chaired by the Vice-Chair  of the Board  . 

 16.7.  The Board Chair shall not be eligible to be elected as the Chair or Vice-Chair of any 
 Statutory,  Sub-Committees of the  Board, or Community  committee  s.  with the exception of 
 the Director Performance Appraisal Committee. 

 16.8.  Other Trustees are not eligible to serve as Chair of more than one Statutory Committee at 
 the same time. Trustees shall not be elected as Vice-Chair of more than two Statutory 
 Committees at the same time, unless otherwise approved by the Board of Trustees. 

 16.9.  A majority of the members constituting a committee shall be a quorum unless otherwise 
 indicated in a committee terms of reference. Should there be no quorum present at the time 
 appointed for the meeting, the Committee Chair shall seek the advice and consent of 
 members as to what action should be taken. Should no quorum be present within thirty 
 minutes after the appointed time for the meeting, the Secretary shall record the names of the 
 members present and the time, and the meeting shall be cancelled, unless members 
 present direct that the meeting continue, recognizing that no formal action may be taken 
 unless otherwise stated in the terms of reference. 

 16.10.  The Chair or Vice-Chair of the committee, as the case may be, shall count in forming a 
 quorum. 

 16.11.  Trustees may attend meetings of committees of which they are not members and, unless 
 otherwise limited by legislation, collective agreement or Board motion, shall not vote but may 
 use their voice in such a way that it does not hinder the actions or work of the committee. 
 Members of the committee shall be recognized first, followed by recognition of other trustees 
 attending the meeting. 

 16.12.  Unless otherwise directed, all committee recommendations shall be reported to the Board in 
 the form of a report to a Committee of the Whole meeting, and shall be subject to the 
 approval of the Board. 

 16.13.  If a Statutory,  Sub-Committee of the  Board or Community  Committee makes a 
 recommendation that requires  immediate  consideration  by the Board, the process noted 
 below is to be followed: 

 a.  The Agenda Development Committee must be advised that the Statutory, 
 Sub-Committee of the  Board or Community Committee  has a report they wish 
 to have scheduled on a Board or  Standing  Committee  of the Whole  meeting 
 agenda. 

 b.  This report shall be submitted, providing the background information 
 necessary for trustees to make an informed decision on the recommendation. 

 24 

67



 Draf
t 

 c.  The report will normally be scheduled for the first Board or  Standing 
 Committee  of the Whole  meeting following the Agenda Development 
 Committee meeting where the report is considered. If the recommendation is 
 time-sensitive, any alternative action will be at the discretion of the Board 
 Chair. 

 d.  The minutes of the Statutory,  Sub-Committee of the  Board and Community 
 Committee meetings (containing the recommendation requiring  immediate 
 consideration) will appear on the Board meeting agenda. 

 16.14.  Meetings of Committees shall be held in accordance with committee approved schedules 
 subject to any terms and conditions contained in the Board's bylaws. Committee Chairs, in 
 consultation with the Committee Vice-Chair, may convene additional meetings as may be 
 deemed necessary, or may cancel a scheduled meeting where there is insufficient agenda 
 material to warrant the holding of a meeting. 

 16.15.  In November of each year, trustees will express interest in  Standing,  Statutory, 
 Sub-Committees of the  Board and Community Committee  membership (as applicable) to the 
 Manager of Corporate Services using the template provided. In an election year, the form 
 will also be distributed to trustee elects. The Board Chair, Vice-Chair and Past Chair will 
 meet with the Manager of Corporate Services to develop recommended trustee committee 
 membership for  Standing,  Statutory,  Sub-Committees  of the  Board and Community 
 Committees. 

 16.16.  Trustees shall adhere to term limits as expressed in the committee's Terms of Reference. In 
 special circumstances, the Board may appoint trustees to committees beyond term limits set 
 out by the committee’s Terms of Reference. 

 16.17.  At the Board meeting in November, trustees will vote on the recommended trustee 
 committee membership for  Standing,  Statutory,  Sub-Committees  of the  Board and 
 Community Committees. 

 16.18.  The Chair of a committee shall call the meeting to order at the hour appointed, shall 
 preserve order and decorum and decide upon all questions of order subject to an appeal to 
 the committee. 

 16.19.  The Chair of any meeting shall have voting rights on all matters. The Chair may vote on all 
 matters that Trustees vote on, thus providing consistency in voting. 

 16.20.  The Chair of a meeting shall ensure that any Trustee wishing to speak shall so indicate by 
 upraised hand, and upon recognition by the committee Chair, who shall call the Trustee by 
 name (Trustee ______), the Trustee shall then address the Chair. 

 16.21.  When two or more Trustees attempt to speak at the same time, the Chair shall name the 
 Trustee who is to speak. 

 16.22.  The Chair shall also ensure that Trustees direct all comments through the Chair and avoid 
 all personal remarks and discourteous language. 

 16.23.  The Chair of a meeting is responsible for maintaining order and seeing that appropriate 
 decorum of a meeting is maintained. Disruptions by the public will not be permitted. 
 Applause, booing or other audible or visual demonstrations of support or opposition may be 
 intimidating for those with opposing views. The Chair may expel or exclude from any 
 meeting any person(s) who engage in this or any other form of improper conduct. Prohibition 
 on visual demonstrations shall not be construed to prohibit expressions of identity related to 

 25 

68



 Draf
t 

 characteristics protected under the Ontario Human Rights Code. Courtesy and respect for 
 others must be displayed at all times. 

 16.24.  The Chair of a meeting may expel or exclude from any meeting any person(s) who engage 
 in unauthorized audio, video, or photographic recordings. Authorization for audio, video, or 
 photographs will be at the discretion of the Chair. 

 17.  Committee  of the Whole  Standing Committees 
 17.1.  The Committee of the Whole is composed of the full membership of the Board. 

 17.2.  Trustees are not eligible to serve as Chair of more than one Standing Committee at the 
 same time. Trustees shall not be elected as Vice-Chair of more than two Standing 
 Committees at the same time, unless otherwise approved by the Board of Trustees  . 

 17.3.  The term for Chair and Vice-Chair of a Standing Committee is two years, starting at the first 
 meeting of the Standing Committee after November 15, 2026. Prior to then, the term will be 
 from the first meeting following the implementation of these Bylaws until the first meeting of 
 the Standing Committee after November 15, 2026. 

 17.4.  The Chair of  a Standing Committee  the Board  shall  chair all  Committee of the Whole 
 meetings. In the Chair’s absence, the Vice-Chair of the  Standing Committee  Board  shall 
 chair such meetings. In the absence of both,  the Past  Chair shall chair such meetings. In the 
 absence of all,  Trustees shall elect a chair from  amongst the Trustees present at the 
 meeting. 

 17.5.  The role of  Standing Committees  the Committee of the  Whole is to  assist the Board in 
 fulfilling its duties related to governance  and oversight  with a system wide focus by providing 
 advice on system issues related to Policies, Programming and School Services, Business, 
 Finance, and Facilities/Capital Planning. 

 17.6.  The committee will maintain an ongoing strategic dialogue with and through the Director to 
 ensure matters related to school programs and school services; business and finance; 
 capital planning and facilities; student transportation; and human resources are in alignment 
 with the Board's Multi-Year Strategic Plan and operational goals. The Committee deals with 
 such matters as may be referred to the committee by the Board and receives reports as 
 requested or as appropriate. 

 17.7.  The Committee of the Whole shall meet monthly on the second working Mondays between 
 September and June commencing at 7:00 p.m., unless otherwise determined by members 
 of the Agenda Development Committee.  Standing  Committee  of the Whole  meetings will be 
 held in the boardroom of the WRDSB Education Centre. 

 17.8.  All  Standing  Committee  of the Whole  meetings will  begin with a territorial acknowledgement, 
 followed by the singing of the Canadian national anthem. 

 17.9.  Minutes will be taken at all  Standing  Committee  of  the Whole  meetings and must be 
 submitted for approval at the next regularly-scheduled Board meeting. Minutes are a concise 
 and official record of the proceedings of a meeting, containing what was done in the meeting 
 but not what was said. 

 17.10.  An opportunity for the public to present as a delegation to the  Standing  Committee  of the 
 Whole  regarding issues of concern/interest will be  included on the agenda of the  Standing 
 Committee  of the Whole  meeting. 

 26 

69



 Draf
t 

 17.11.  Business Services Standing Committee 

 17.11.1.  This committee is guided by the Business Services Standing Committee Terms of 
 Reference as approved by the Board of Trustees. 

 17.11.2.  The committee will maintain an ongoing dialogue with and through the Director, or 
 designate, to ensure matters related to business and finance; capital planning and 
 facilities; student transportation; and human resources are in alignment with the 
 Board's Multi-Year Strategic Plan and operational goals. The committee deals with 
 such matters as may be referred to the committee by the Board and receives 
 reports as requested or as appropriate. 

 17.12.  Student Achievement and Well-Being Standing Committee 

 17.12.1.  This committee is guided by the Student Achievement and Well-Being Standing 
 Committee Terms of Reference as approved by the Board of Trustees. 

 17.12.2.  The committee will maintain an ongoing dialogue with and through the Director, or 
 designate, to ensure matters related to school programs and school services are 
 in alignment with the Board's Multi-Year Strategic Plan and operational goals. The 
 committee deals with such matters as may be referred to the committee by the 
 Board and receives reports as requested or as appropriate. 

 17.13.  Policy and Governance Standing Committee 

 17.13.1.  This committee is guided by the Policy and Governance Standing Committee 
 Terms of Reference as approved by the Board of Trustees. 

 17.13.2.  The committee will maintain an ongoing dialogue with and through the Director, or 
 designate, to ensure Board policies, bylaws and trustee self-evaluation  are in 
 alignment with the Board's Multi-Year Strategic Plan and operational goals. The 
 committee deals with such matters as may be referred to the committee by the 
 Board and receives reports as requested or as appropriate. 

 18.  In Camera Meetings 
 18.1.  The Board or  Standing Committees  may move into In  Camera upon any confidential matter 

 brought for its consideration when the subject matter under consideration involves 
 (  Education Act  , Section 207(2)): 

 a.  the security of the property of the board; 
 b.  the disclosure of intimate, personal or financial information in respect of a 

 member of the Board or committee, an employee or prospective employee of 
 the Board or a pupil or his or her parent or guardian; 

 c.  the acquisition or disposal of a school site; 
 d.  decisions in respect of negotiations with employees of the Board; or 
 e.  litigation affecting the Board. 
 f.  an ongoing investigation under the  Ombudsman Act  respecting  the Board. 

 18.2.  The committee is composed of the full membership of the Board. 

 18.3.  In Camera Board meetings will occur as required before a Board meeting and  Standing 
 Committees will move to In Camera as needed.  In Camera  Committee of the Whole 
 meeting will occur as required before a Committee of the Whole meeting. 

 27 

70



 Draf
t 

 18.4.  In Camera meetings shall be closed to all but Trustees, the Student Trustees (with the 
 exception of items that involve the disclosure of intimate, personal and/or confidential 
 information in respect of a member of the Board or committee, an employee or prospective 
 employee of the board or a student or their family or caregiver), Director of Education, 
 Supervisory Officers, members of the senior team and the Manager of Corporate Services. 
 Others may be asked to attend as appropriate or to speak to specific agenda items  as 
 determined by the Director. 

 18.5.  In Camera  Board  meetings will occur at 6:00 pm prior  to a  Committee of the Whole meeting 
 or  Board meeting, unless otherwise determined by members  of the Agenda Development 
 Committee, in the boardroom of the WRDSB Education Centre. 

 18.6.  At the discretion of the Chair and in consultation with the Vice-Chair and the Director, an In 
 Camera meeting may be cancelled or rescheduled. 

 18.7.  With at least 48 hours notice, a Special Board  or  Committee of the Whole  In Camera 
 meeting may be held on the call of the Chair  of the  Board  , or at the written request of the 
 majority of Trustees made to the Chair, or if absent, the Vice-Chair, or if absent, the Director. 
 The meeting may be held at a date, time and place established by decision of the Chair, or if 
 absent, the Vice-Chair, or if absent, the Director. 

 18.8.  With at least 48 hours notice, a Special Standing Committee In Camera meeting may be 
 held on the call of the Committee Chair, or at the written request of the majority of Trustees 
 on the committee made to the Chair, or if absent, the Vice-Chair, or if absent, the Director. 
 The meeting may be held at a date, time and place established by decision of the Chair, or if 
 absent, the Vice-Chair, or if absent, the Director. 

 18.9.  In Camera  Board  meetings normally will adjourn by  7:00 pm or recess and reconvene prior 
 to the adjournment of the Board  or Committee of the  Whole  meeting as necessary. 

 18.10.  The Chair of the Board or if absent, the Vice-Chair of the Board shall chair all in camera 
 Board meetings  sessions  . In the case of absence of  both the Chair and Vice-Chair for five 
 minutes after the hour appointed, as soon as a quorum is present, the Past Chair of the 
 Board shall preside. In the event the Past Chair is not present, Board members shall elect a 
 chair from amongst the Trustees present at the meeting. 

 18.11.  In Camera  Board meetings  sessions  shall report at  the next regularly-scheduled Board 
 meeting  , or Committee of the Whole meeting  or at the  Special meeting called specifically for 
 this purpose. 

 18.12.  In Camera Standing Committee meetings shall report at the next regularly-scheduled 
 Standing Committee meeting or at the Special meeting called specifically for this purpose. 

 18.13.  All in camera materials are considered strictly confidential and provided for the sole purpose 
 of conducting Board business. This includes, but is not limited to, agendas, reports, 
 presentations and personal notes. Trustees are responsible for destroying or deleting all 
 in-camera material not collected by staff, (paper and electronic) following the meeting. 

 18.14.  As part of its in camera procedures, the WRDSB allows any Trustee to rise on a point of 
 order dealing with the appropriateness of agenda items to be considered during an in 
 camera meeting, and the decision to consider an agenda item which might be called into 
 question will be based on the willingness of a majority of Trustees present at the meeting to 
 consider the item as an in camera matter. 

 18.15.  Attendance of staff members at meetings will be determined by the Director. 

 28 

71



 Draf
t 

 19.  Statutory Committees 
 Statutory  committees will operate in accordance with  the legislation or regulation by which they are 
 established. In all cases where these Bylaws conflict with the legislative or regulatory provisions 
 governing statutory committees, the legislative or regulatory provisions shall prevail. 

 19.1.  Audit Committee  – The Audit Committee shall function  in accordance with the terms of the 
 Education  Act  and the regulations made thereunder.  (  Education Act  , Section 253.1; Ontario 
 Regulation 361/10 – Audit Committees) 

 19.2.  Discipline Committee  - In accordance with Section  23 (6) of the  Education  Act  , the 
 WRDSB has directed its powers and duties with respect to the hearing of appeals to 
 suspensions/expulsions to a Committee comprised of three or more trustees appointed 
 annually by the Board. 

 19.3.  Parent Involvement Committee (PIC)  – The Parent Involvement  Committee shall function 
 in accordance with Regulation 612/00 from Bill 177 (  The Student Achievement and School 
 Board Governance Act  ). 

 19.4.  Special Education Advisory Committee (SEAC)  - The  Special Education Advisory 
 Committee shall function in accordance with the terms of the  Education Act  and the 
 regulations made thereunder. (  Education Act  , Section  57.1; Ontario Regulation 464/97) 

 19.5.  Student Program Review/Student Alternative Learning Committee (SAL)  – The Student 
 Program Review/Student Alternative Learning Committee shall function in accordance with 
 the  Education  Act  and the regulations made thereunder  (Ontario Regulation 374/10 – 
 Supervised Alternative Learning and Other Excusals from Attendance at School). 

 19.6.  Director Performance Appraisal Committee (DPA)  –  The DPA Committee shall function 
 in accordance with the  Education  Act  and the regulations  made thereunder (Ontario 
 Regulation 83/24 - Director Of Education Performance Appraisal). 

 19.6.1.  The committee consists of the Board Chair, the Board Vice-Chair, Board Past 
 Chair, two trustees selected to align with the Director’s Performance Appraisal 
 timelines, the Associate Director with responsibility for Human Resources, and 
 other staff as determined by the Director of Education. 

 19.6.2.  The Director Performance Appraisal Committee is designed to help the WRDSB 
 achieve its strategic and annual goals and to help foster and build a strong 
 working relationship between the Director and the Board. 

 19.6.3.  The Director Performance Appraisal Committee will meet as per the timelines 
 established in Ontario Regulation 83/24, Director of Education Performance 
 Appraisal. 

 19.6.4.  The Committee is chaired by the Board Vice-Chair or the Board Chair, in the 
 absence of the Vice-Chair, or by another trustee designated by the Board Chair 
 and will report directly to the Board. 

 20.  Board  Sub-  Committees  of the Board 
 20.1.  Agenda Development Committee 

 29 

72



 Draf
t 

 20.1.1.  Agenda Development Committee shall be struck each year for the following 
 purposes: 
 a.  to set meeting agendas; 
 b.  to ensure the flow of business to be brought before the Board or any of its 

 committees, including timed, regular reports; 
 c.  to track to completion all business brought before the Board by motion, and 

 provide to all trustees on a monthly basis a current schedule of meetings and 
 pending agenda items. 

 20.1.2.  The committee shall be comprised of the following: Board Chair; Board 
 Vice-Chair;  Chair of each Standing Committee  Past  Chair; one trustee assigned 
 on an alphabetical rotation; one trustee appointed for the period December to 
 April; one trustee appointed for the period May to November  ; Director of 
 Education and Secretary, and Manager of Corporate Services. 

 20.1.3.  The committee  is  may be  chaired by the Board Vice-Chair  or the Board Chair, in 
 the absence of the Vice-Chair, or by another Trustee designated by the 
 Committee Chair and will report directly to the Board. The committee will serve in 
 an advisory capacity only, having no power to act. 

 20.1.4.  The Agenda Development Committee will meet on the first working Monday of 
 each month, as well as at the call of the Committee Chair. 

 20.2.  Director Performance Appraisal Committee 

 20.2.1.  The committee consists of the Board Chair, the Board Vice-Chair, Board Past 
 Chair, two trustees selected to align with the Director’s Performance Appraisal 
 timelines, the Supervisory Officer with responsibility for Human Resources, and 
 Senior Manager, Research and Evidence Based-Practice Department. 

 20.2.2.  The Director Performance Appraisal Committee is designed to help the WRDSB 
 achieve its strategic and annual goals and to help foster and build a strong 
 working relationship between the Director and the Board. 

 20.2.3.  The Director Performance Appraisal Committee will meet as per the timelines 
 established in Ontario Regulation 83/24, Director of Education Performance 
 Appraisal. 

 20.2.4.  The Committee may be chaired by the Board Vice-Chair or the Board Chair, in the 
 absence of the Vice-Chair, or by another trustee designated by the Board Chair 
 and will report directly to the Board. 

 20.3.  Student Trustee Mentors 

 20.3.1.  Two student trustee mentors will be assigned using the committee membership 
 process set out in sections 16.13-16.15 above. 

 20.3.2.  Student Trustees and Student Trustee Mentors are guided by Board Policy 3006, 
 Student Trustees and Student Representation within the Board and the  Education 
 Act. 

 20.4.  School Year Calendar Committee 

 20.4.1.  This committee is guided by the  Education Act,  the  Regulations legislation, 
 Ministry of Education policies and timelines and collective bargaining agreements. 

 30 

73



 Draf
t 

 20.5.  Policy Working Group 

 20.5.1.  This committee is guided by the Policy Working Group Terms of Reference. 

 21.  Community Committees 
 Trustees may attend meetings of committees of which they are not members and, unless otherwise 
 limited by law, collective agreement or Board motion, shall have voice but no vote. 

 21.1.  Equity and Inclusion Advisory Group 

 21.1.1.  This committee is guided by the Equity and Inclusion Advisory Group Terms of 
 Reference. 

 21.2.  Mental Health and Addiction Strategy Working Group 

 21.2.1.  This committee is guided by the Mental Health and Addiction Strategy Working 
 Group Terms of Reference. 

 21.3.  School Year Calendar Committee 

 21.3.1.  This committee is guided by the  Education Act,  the  Regulations legislation, 
 Ministry of Education policies and timelines and collective bargaining agreements. 

 22.  Ad Hoc Committees 
 22.1.  Ad Hoc Committees of the Board may only be established by Board approval. The 

 recommendation to form such a committee must include completed Terms of Reference 
 stating a mandate, time frame for reporting to the Board and committee membership. 

 22.2.  An Ad Hoc Committee shall be permitted to request from the Board an extension of its 
 reporting timeline, if required. 

 22.3.  A formal Board motion should be presented to dissolve an Ad Hoc Committee once the final 
 report has been presented to the Board. 

 23.  Trustee Representation on Staff Committees 
 23.1.  Trustee representatives may be requested to serve on staff (administrative) committees 

 which are chaired by a senior administrator or designate. 

 23.2.  Staff Committee Chairs are to submit any requests for trustee representation to the Chair of 
 the Board who will seek trustee volunteers and determine appointments in consultation with 
 the Vice-Chair of the Board and the Director. 

 23.3.  If necessary, actions taken by staff committees will be reported to the Board as information 
 as determined by the Staff Committee Chair. 

 24.  Student Trustees 
 24.1.  The Board appoints student representatives annually, as directed by the  Education Act  , in 

 accordance with the Board’s policy 3006 – Student Trustees and Student Representation 
 within the Board. 

 31 

74



 Draf
t 

 24.2.  A Student Trustee will have their vote recorded for the purpose of public record and for 
 accountability to the student body; however, it is recognized that “a student trustee is not a 
 member of the Board and is not entitled to exercise a binding vote.” (  Education Act  , Section 
 55 (2)) 

 24.3.  Student trustees will have the opportunity to provide verbal reports to the Board. 

 24.4.  Student trustees are expected to attend Board meetings and Student Achievement and 
 Well-Being Standing Committee meetings. 

 24.5.  Student trustees are invited to attend Business Services Standing Committee meetings and 
 Policy and Governance Standing Committee meetings. 

 25.  Rules of Order 
 The rules and regulations contained within these bylaws and procedures shall be the rules and 
 regulations for the order and dispatch of business of the WRDSB. In all cases not provided for by 
 these rules, the rules and practice of  Robert’s Rules  of Order  shall govern as applicable. 

 25.1.  Notice of Motion 

 25.1.1.  Trustees may verbally serve notice of a motion that they intend to present at a 
 future meeting during a Board  or Committee of the  Whole  meeting under the 
 “Future Agenda Items” portion of the meeting. 

 25.1.2.  The notice of motion must indicate the rationale of the motion and must be 
 accurate and complete since it will determine what amendments are in order when 
 the motion (e.g. “To raise the annual fee to $20.00") is considered. The notice of 
 motion will become invalid if the motion is amended beyond the scope of the 
 notice. 

 25.1.3.  Trustees require the signed support of at least one additional trustee before the 
 notice of motion would be accepted and scheduled for consideration by the Board  . 

 25.1.4.  The wording of the motion and appropriate signatures must be provided to the 
 Manager of Corporate Services for scheduling on the next Agenda Development 
 Committee agenda, no later than noon on the Friday prior to the Agenda 
 Development Committee meeting. 
 a.  If the motion refers to the formation of an ad hoc committee, the terms of 

 reference for such committee shall be included when the notice of motion is 
 submitted to the Manager of Corporate Services. 

 25.1.5.  A Notice of Motion may be withdrawn by the server with agreement by the 
 seconder prior to discussion of the motion commencing. 

 25.2.  Types of  Motions  at Board and Standing Committee Meetings 

 Debate of a motion shall take place after it has been moved, and where required, seconded 
 and only after the Chair states the motion. 

 25.2.1.  The mover of a motion may alter the wording, or withdraw the motion, up until 
 such time as the motion is stated by the Chair. Once stated by the Chair, and 
 thereby recorded in the minutes, the motion is in control of the Board of Trustees 
 and cannot be withdrawn or amended without passing a motion to do so. 

 32 

75



 Draf
t 

 25.2.2.  When a question is under debate, the only motions in order shall be: 
 a.  adjourn or take a recess; 
 b.  raise a question under point of order, privilege, information or inquiry; 
 c.  lay on the table; 
 d.  call the question; 
 e.  postpone to a certain time; 
 f.  refer; 
 g.  amend; 
 h.  postpone indefinitely; 
 i.  main motion. 

 Each motion shall have precedence in the order listed; and a, b, c and d shall be 
 decided without debate except as provided under point of order, privilege or 
 inquiry by majority vote other than motion d which shall require a two-thirds vote of 
 those present to adopt. 

 25.2.3.  Adjourn 

 a.  A motion to adjourn shall be in order except when a Trustee is speaking, or a 
 vote is being taken, or when the previous question has been called. A motion 
 to adjourn only shall not be open to amendment or debate; but a motion to 
 adjourn to a particular time may be amended or debated. 

 b.  No second motion to adjourn shall be made until some business has been 
 transacted after the first motion to adjourn has failed. 

 25.2.4.  Take a recess 

 A motion to take a recess shall be in order except when a Trustee is speaking, or 
 a vote is being taken, or when the previous question has been called. A motion to 
 take a recess shall be open to amendment but is not debatable. 

 25.2.5.  Raise a question under point of order, privilege, information or inquiry 

 No Trustee shall be interrupted while speaking except when a point of order, 
 privilege, information or inquiry is raised by a Trustee, in which case the Trustee 
 shall remain silent until the point has been decided by the Chair. A Trustee so 
 interrupting shall speak to the point or in explanation only. 

 A privilege motion, in order of precedence, shall be considered over all other 
 business and may be moved without notice. A privileged motion is a motion that is 
 granted precedence over ordinary business. Such motions are not debatable, 
 although in case of questions of privilege, the Chair may feel the need to elicit 
 relevant facts from members. 

 a.  A point of order is called for transgression of the rules of the Board.  When a 
 point of order is called, the trustee, when recognized by the chair, must state 
 the rule that has been transgressed. 

 b.  A point of privilege affecting the Board includes matters such as noise, 
 comfort or safety. 

 c.  A point of personal privilege affecting a member includes the reputation or 
 treatment of the member or staff, as well as any member of the public and the 
 member’s ability to exercise rights and privileges. 

 33 

76



 Draf
t 

 d.  A point of information is a request made to the chair for information regarding 
 the pending business. 

 e.  A point of parliamentary inquiry is called to request information on the 
 parliamentary procedure for a meeting. 

 25.2.6.  Appeal the decision of the Chair 

 The Chair, when called upon to decide a point of order or practice, shall, before 
 stating a decision, give reasons for such decision. 

 a.  The ruling of the Chair shall be final, subject only to a Trustee appealing the 
 ruling of the Chair. 

 b.  When a Trustee appeals the decision of the Chair, the Trustee shall state the 
 reasons for the appeal and the Chair shall have the opportunity to provide the 
 rationale in support of the decision or if the reasons given for the appeal are 
 convincing, the Chair may change their ruling accordingly, in which case the 
 appeal is automatically dropped. Such appeal shall be decided with limited 
 debate. 

 c.  The Chair shall ask “Shall the decision of the Chair be sustained?” The Chair 
 may vote on such an appeal and in the event that there is a tie vote, the 
 decision of the Chair shall be deemed to be sustained. 

 25.2.7.  Lay on the Table 

 A motion to lay on the table is properly used only when it is necessary to suspend 
 consideration of a main motion in order to deal with another matter that has come 
 up unexpectedly and which must be dealt with before the pending motion can be 
 properly addressed. This motion cannot be used to end consideration of the 
 pending main motion without debate. 

 25.2.8.  Call the Question 

 A motion to call the question may be moved at any time when a motion, with or 
 without amendment or amendments, is before the Board, provided that no Trustee 
 is interrupted while speaking. 

 a.  A motion to call the question is undebatable and shall be put in the following 
 words, “I move that we call the question”. 

 b.  If carried by two-thirds of those present, the Chair shall then call for the vote 
 on the pending motion and amendments (if more than one is before the Board 
 at the time the question is called), in the appropriate order as required by 
 these rules, and these items shall be voted upon and disposed of without 
 further debate, and no other motion or amendment shall be entertained until 
 the motion and amendment(s) are disposed of. 

 c.  If the vote on the amendment is negative, further amendments may then be 
 moved, and the motion and all amendments shall continue to be debated in 
 the same manner. 

 25.2.9.  Postpone to a certain time 

 A motion to postpone to a certain time is used to delay action on a pending 
 question until a different day, meeting, hour or until after a certain event. Then, 
 when that time comes, the consideration of the question is picked up where it was 
 left off when it was postponed. A motion to postpone to a certain time must be 
 seconded, is debatable and can be amended. 

 34 

77



 Draf
t 

 25.2.10.  Refer 

 A motion to refer is used when a number of details need to be worked out and the 
 motion needs to be discussed much more informally or at a greater length than is 
 possible in a regular meeting. The Board can refer the motion to a committee or 
 staff. A motion to refer must be seconded, is debatable and can be amended. 

 25.2.11.  Amendments 

 After a motion is made and seconded, a motion to amend may be made, and a 
 motion to amend the amendment; but no further motion to amend shall be made 
 until those have been decided. 

 a.  An amendment modifying the subject of a motion shall be in order, but an 
 amendment relating to a different subject or completely changing the intent of 
 a motion shall not be considered. 

 b.  All amendments shall be put in the reverse order to which they are moved. 

 c.  Every amendment submitted shall be decided upon or withdrawn before the 
 main question is put to a vote; and if the vote on an amendment is decided in 
 the affirmative the main question as amended shall be put to a vote. 

 d.  After a motion has been moved and seconded and before the question has 
 been put by the Chair, any Trustee may informally suggest one or more 
 modifications (a friendly amendment) to the motion about which there is 
 unlikely to be a difference of opinion. The mover of the motion may accept or 
 reject the suggested modification. 

 25.2.12.  The motion to postpone indefinitely is used to eliminate a main motion without 
 taking a direct vote on it. This motion does not actually "postpone" the main 
 motion. A question having been postponed indefinitely shall not be taken up again 
 at the same meeting. 

 25.3.  Motions Considered at Board and  Standing  Committee  of the Whole  Meetings 

 25.3.1.  Motions shall be related to an agenda item. 

 25.3.2.  Every motion shall be seconded and shall be disposed of only by a vote  of the 
 Board  unless the mover and seconder, by permission  of the Chair, withdraw the 
 motion, as long as the motion has not been ‘put’ or stated by the Chair. 

 a.  After a motion is moved and seconded, and has been stated by the Chair, it 
 shall be deemed to be in possession of the Board and cannot be withdrawn or 
 amended without passing a motion to do so. 

 25.3.3.  Any Trustee may request the motion under discussion be read for information at 
 any time in the course of the debate, provided that no such request is made so as 
 to interrupt a Trustee speaking to the question. 

 25.3.4.  The mover and seconder shall be recorded in the official minutes of all Board  and 
 Standing  Committee  of the Whole  meetings. 

 25.3.5.  A Trustee may introduce a motion and to provide clarification only on the wording 
 before the motion is seconded. No other Trustee is permitted to speak to a motion 
 before it is seconded. 

 35 

78



 Draf
t 

 25.3.6.  Student Trustees may not move a motion but may suggest a motion on any matter 
 at a meeting of the Board or of one of the committees on which the Student 
 Trustee sits. If no Trustee or committee, as the case may be, moves the 
 suggested motion, the record shall show the suggested motion. 

 25.4.  Discussion of Agenda Items  at Board and Standing Committee  Meetings 

 25.4.1.  The Chair shall ensure every Trustee speaks only to the matter under discussion. 

 25.4.2.  A Trustee may speak twice to an agenda item and request one supplementary 
 question each time. 

 25.4.3.  No Trustee shall speak longer than five minutes on the same question without 
 leave of the Chair. 

 25.4.4.  At the Discretion of the Chair, trustees may be given permission to ask additional 
 questions. 

 25.5.  Motion to Suspend the Rules  at Board and Standing  Committee Meetings 

 25.5.1.  Any Trustee may make a motion to suspend the rules in order to do something, 
 which cannot ordinarily be done without violating these rules. Such a motion is not 
 debatable and requires a two-thirds vote of Trustees present at the meeting to 
 pass. It may not be used in such a manner that would be seen as taking away a 
 Trustee’s rights. 

 25.6.  Voting  at Board and Standing Committee Meetings 

 25.6.1.  No Trustee shall have more than one vote, as Chair or otherwise, either at Board 
 meetings, or on any committee. 

 25.6.2.  Any Trustee may abstain from voting. An abstention maintains a quorum. The 
 number of yea and nay votes will determine the approval or defeat of a motion 
 under consideration. If the vote required is a majority or two-thirds of the Trustees 
 present, an abstention will have the same effect as a no vote. In any case an 
 abstention is not a vote and cannot be counted as a vote, but can be noted in the 
 minutes of the meeting. 

 25.6.3.  As ruled by the Chair, every Trustee may vote on a question put in a telephone 
 poll or e-mail submission conducted by the Manager of Corporate Services or 
 designate. In all cases where there is an equality of votes, the question is 
 defeated. 

 25.6.4.  After the Chair has put a question to vote, there shall be no further debate. The 
 decision of the Chair as to whether the question has been finally put shall be 
 conclusive. This includes once the vote has occurred we will move onto the next 
 item on the agenda. Trustees are not permitted to continue to debate the motion 
 by making any comments on the outcome of the vote that has just occurred as 
 this could be seen as the final word. 

 25.6.5.  A Trustee may call for a recorded vote as long as the request is made prior to the 
 vote. The Manager of Corporate Services will conduct the recorded vote. 

 a.  The request for a recorded vote shall record the votes of those participating in 
 the vote indicating a nay, yea or abstention. The resulting number of yeas, 

 36 

79



 Draf
t 

 nays and abstentions shall be declared by the Manager of Corporate 
 Services. 

 b.  Unless a recorded vote is requested, all votes at meetings shall be taken by a 
 show of hands. The resulting number of yeas, and nays, shall be declared by 
 the Chair. The Manager of Corporate Services will restate and reconfirm the 
 outcome of a recorded vote if it is in question. 

 25.6.6.  Voting by proxy will not be allowed in any meeting under the jurisdiction of the 
 Board in that proxy voting is incompatible with the essential characteristics of the 
 Board in which membership is individual, personal and non-transferable. 

 25.6.7.  In accordance with the  Education Act  (Section 55),  the Student Trustees are not 
 entitled to exercise a binding vote on any matter before the board or any of its 
 committees. They may request to have their non-binding vote recorded in the 
 Board minutes and may request that a matter before the Board, or any of its 
 committees, be put to a vote. 

 25.7.  Reconsideration of a Motion Previously Approved by the Board 

 25.7.1.  Once a motion has been decided upon by the Board at a regular or Special Board 
 meeting, and confirmed by a resolution of the Board recorded in its minutes, it 
 shall not be reconsidered during the ensuing twelve-month period unless: 
 a.  at least 72 hours written notice has been given to all members of the Board; 

 and 
 b.  the motion to reconsider is made by a Trustee who voted with the prevailing 

 side (whether it was for or against);* and 
 c.  the affirmative vote of two-thirds of all Trustees of the Board present at the 

 meeting is received to reopen the matter.** 

 Notes: 

 *The prevailing side means that if the majority of Trustees voted in favour of a 
 motion, the Trustee presenting the motion of reconsideration must be someone 
 who previously voted in favour of it. If the majority of Trustees voted against the 
 motion, the Trustees presenting the reconsideration motion must be someone who 
 previously voted against it. However, in the year following the election of a new 
 Board, newly elected trustees (not including re-elected incumbents), will be 
 deemed to have voted on the prevailing side of any motion proposed for 
 reconsideration that received formal approval by the previous board. 
 A tie vote would consider the vote against the motion (or the No vote) to be the 
 prevailing side. 

 **No formal action may be taken unless a quorum is present (half of total 
 membership plus one). 

 25.7.2.  When a Trustee has properly moved for reconsideration of any question which 
 has been decided, no discussion of the main question shall be allowed until the 
 motion for reconsideration has been decided in the affirmative. 

 25.8.  Other Business/Requests for Information  Question Period  at Board and Standing 
 Committee Meetings 

 25.8.1.  A period of time is scheduled just prior to the adjournment of each regular Board 
 and Standing Committee  and Committee of the Whole  meeting for other business 
 from Trustees. Trustees are advised to contact the appropriate administrative 

 37 

80



 Draf
t 

 official(s) regarding the item on which they intend to speak so that staff are 
 prepared to respond appropriately, if possible. 

 25.9.  Requests for Information 

 25.9.1.  Requests by individual Trustees for information, which will require a significant 
 time commitment by Administration, must be formulated into a motion and receive 
 Board approval prior to the task being undertaken. A request approved by “will of 
 the Board” is acceptable when the request does not require significant time 
 commitment by staff as determined in consultation with the Director of Education. 

 25.10.  Announcements/Celebrating Board Activities 

 25.10.1.  Presentations made under the “Announcements/Celebrating Board Activities 
 section on the regular Board meeting agenda shall be limited to information 
 concerning events or activities at which the Trustee or Student Trustee presenting 
 the report was acting on behalf of or representing the Board as an advocate for 
 public education. 

 38 

81



 DRAFT 
 Appendix B 

 Draft Terms of Reference 
 Standing Committees 
 Ad Hoc Board Committee Structure Committee 

 Student Achievement and Well-Being 
 Terms Of Reference 

 Committee Type:  Standing Committee 
 Membership:  Four (4) Trustees plus the Chairperson  of the Board 
 Election of Committee Chair and Vice-Chair:  Election  to be held at the first meeting 
 of the Committee after the Inaugural Meeting or the Organizational Meeting of the Board 
 and will follow the Election Process outlined in Section 10 of the WRDSB Board Bylaws 
 Term of Appointment  : Two-Year Term 
 Quorum Requirement:  A majority of members - three  (3) 
 Meeting Frequency:  Approximately Four (4) times per  school year 

 (for example: October, December, February, May) 
 Reporting Structure:  Reports Directly to Board 
 Administrative Responsibility:  Associate Director,  SAWB 
 Applicable Legislation/Policies: 
 Approval Date/Last Update: 

 COMMITTEE MANDATE: 
 ●  to consider matters related to student achievement, well being and equity 

 through school improvement 
 ●  to review structures, programs, processes and work plans to examine disparities 

 in outcomes as they relate to student achievement and well-being for students 
 who are most marginalized 

 ●  to consider staff reports regarding proposed interventions and other processes to 
 address disparities in learning outcomes 

 ●  to consider reports on educational programs to promote belonging  (i.e. equity, 
 decolonization, inclusion and through an anti-oppressive lens) 

 ●  to consider staff reports regarding the efficacy of instruction a well as the 
 effectiveness of student programs 

 ●  to consider recommendations for new programs anchored in the Multi Year 
 Strategic Plan and Board Improvement and Equity Plan 

 ●  to consider reports regarding staffing needs related to student programs and 
 associated budget implications 

82



 DRAFT 
 ●  to study trends in education and their implications on student learning and 

 achievement 
 ●  to review and make recommendations to the Board for the naming of school 

 facilities 
 ●  to be aware of the programs provided to support student achievement and 

 well-being, including curricular and co-curricular choice, for students available in 
 the Board’s schools 

 ●  to ensure the Committee’s deliberations are undertaken with the intent to achieve 
 the goals of equity, decolonization, inclusion, anti-racism, anti-oppression and 
 accessibility and in compliance with its obligations under the Ontario Human 
 Rights Code and related policies 

 ●  to provide all members of the WRDSB community with an opportunity to provide 
 input to the Committee 

 ●  to ensure that the Committee's decision-making process and any subsequent 
 recommendations are free from discrimination and adhere to the Ontario Human 
 Rights Code and related policies in addressing historically and currently 
 marginalized or underserved students or families 

 ●  to consider delegations in accordance with the WRDSB Bylaws 

 Roles and Responsibilities of Members: 
 ●  to ensure that the Committee’s work supports the goals in the Board’s Multi-Year 

 Strategic Plan and the Board’s Mission, Vision and Strategic Directions 
 ●  to ensure that the Committee’s work is supported by relevant Board policy, where 

 applicable 
 ●  to provide official minutes and related recommendations to the Board for its 

 consideration 
 ●  to ensure that the Committee’s work is conducted in an open and transparent 

 manner (within the confidentiality provisions of the Education Act) 

 Reports: 
 ●  Student Behaviour Incident Report 
 ●  Identification Placement and Review Committee Membership 
 ●  Annual Suspension/Expulsion Report 
 ●  Monthly Suspension Reports 
 ●  School Year Calendar 

 Filling Vacancies  : Vacancies shall be filled by appointment by the Board, and in 
 accordance with applicable legislation or regulation. 

83



 DRAFT 
 Note  : If the Terms of Reference are found to be inconsistent with or contradict any 
 legislation or regulation, the legislation or regulation will prevail. 

 Governance and Policy 
 Terms Of Reference 

 Committee Type:  Board Standing Committee 
 Membership:  Four (4) Trustees plus the Chairperson  of the Board 
 Members Election of Committee Chair and Vice-Chair:  Election to be held at the first 
 meeting of the Committee after the Inaugural Meeting or the Organizational Meeting of 
 the Board and will follow the Election Process outlined in Section 10 of the WRDSB 
 Board Bylaws. 
 Term of Appointment:  Two (2) year term 
 Quorum Requirement:  Majority of members 
 Meeting Frequency  : Approximately six (6) to ten (10)  meetings per year 
 Reporting Structure  : Directly to Board 
 Administrative Responsibility  :  Director of Education 
 Applicable Legislation/Policies: 
 Approval Date/Last Update: 

 COMMITTEE MANDATE: 
 ●  to consider and make recommendations to the Board regarding the development, 

 review, revision or elimination of Board policy 
 ●  to monitor, prioritize as required, and make available to the public a list of Board 

 policies scheduled for review, based on a four-year cycle, concurrent with the 
 trustees’ term of office 

 ●  to entrust the implementation of Board policy, through operational procedures, to 
 the Director of Education 

 ●  to implement a policy development and review process that incorporates specific 
 methods to obtain input from the educational community 

 ●  to ensure that relevant Board policy changes, including the development of new 
 policies, will be communicated broadly to the educational community with related 
 rationale and supporting documentation and information about how the policy 
 direction aligns with the Board’s Multi-Year Strategic Plan and student 
 achievement 

 ●  to ensure the Committee’s deliberations are undertaken with the intent to achieve 
 the goals of equity, decolonization, inclusion, anti-racism, anti-oppression and 
 accessibility and in compliance with its obligations under the Ontario Human 
 Rights Code and related policies 

84



 DRAFT 
 ●  to consider and make recommendations to the Board regarding the addition, 

 amendment, repeal or replacement of the WRDSB Bylaws following Board 
 approval of a Notice of Motion to do so 

 ●  To ensure the completion of the annual performance self-assessment of the 
 Board of Trustees 

 ●  to provide all members of the WRDSB community with an opportunity to provide 
 input to the Committee 

 ●  to ensure that the Committee's decision-making process and any subsequent 
 recommendations are free from discrimination and adhere to the Ontario Human 
 Rights Code and related policies in addressing historically and currently 
 marginalized or underserved students or families 

 ●  to consider delegations in accordance with the WRDSB Bylaws 

 Roles and Responsibilities of Members: 
 ●  to ensure that the Committee’s work supports the goals in the Board’s Multi-Year 

 Strategic Plan and the Board’s Mission, Vision and Values 
 ●  to ensure that the Committee’s work is supported by relevant Board policy, where 

 applicable 
 ●  to provide official minutes and related recommendations to the Board for its 

 consideration 
 ●  to ensure that the Committee’s work is conducted in an open and transparent 

 manner (within the confidentiality provisions of the Education Act) 

 Reports: 
 ●  Board Policies 

 Filling Vacancies  : Vacancies shall be filled by appointment  by the Board, and in 
 accordance with applicable legislation or regulation. 

 Note:  If this Governance Directive is found to be  inconsistent with or contradict any 
 legislation or regulation, the legislation or regulation will prevail. 

 Business Services 
 Terms Of Reference 

 Committee Type:  Standing Committee 
 Membership:  Four (4) Trustees plus the Chairperson  of the Board 
 Members Election of Committee Chair and Vice-Chair  :  Election to be held at the first 
 meeting of the Committee after the Inaugural Meeting or the Organizational Meeting of 

85



 DRAFT 
 the Board and will follow the Election Process outlined in Section 10 of the WRDSB 
 Board Bylaws. 
 Term of Appointment:  Two-Year Term 
 Quorum Requirement:  A majority of members - three  (3) 
 Meeting Frequency:  Approximately six (6) per year 

 (for example: September, November, January, March, May, June) 
 Structure  : Reports Directly to Board 
 Administrative Responsibility:  Associate Director,  Business Services 
 Applicable Legislation/Policies: 
 Approval Date/Last Update: 

 COMMITTEE MANDATE  : 
 ●  to provide oversight for physical planning, finance and building matters to review 

 and make recommendations to the Board for short and long-term 
 accommodation and to develop strategies for meeting these objectives through 
 the Long Term Accommodation Plan (LTAP) 

 ●  to review and make recommendations to the Board for new schools and 
 additions 

 ●  to review and make recommendations to the Board to change school boundaries 
 and school organizations 

 ●  to review and make recommendations to the Board for major maintenance, 
 repair, retrofit and replacement projects (i.e. LTAP) 

 ●  to review and make recommendations to the Board for an Annual Accessibility 
 Plan including measures to identify, remove and prevent barriers for people with 
 disabilities 

 ●  to receive Accommodation Review Committee reports and recommendations and 
 forward reports to the Board for review and approval 

 ●  to review and make recommendations to the Board to purchase, sell or lease 
 sites or facilities through Agreements of Purchase and Sale 

 ●  to review and make recommendations to the Board to enter into agreements with 
 other organizations and agencies to use school facilities such as Joint Use 
 Agreements 

 ●  to review and make recommendations to the Board regarding financial matters 
 and the development of the Board’s annual capital and operating budgets 

 ●  to review the Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emissions Update 
 ●  to review and recommend to the Board new financial systems 
 ●  to monitor and report to the Board the performance of major Construction 

 Contracts, as outlined in the  Major Capital Projects  Quarterly Update 
 ●  to receive the annual report from the Student Transportation Services of Waterloo 

 Region (STSWR) 

86



 DRAFT 
 ●  to receive minutes from the Budget Development Committee 
 ●  to ensure the Committee’s deliberations are undertaken with the intent to achieve 

 the goals of equity, decolonization, inclusion, anti-racism, anti-oppression and 
 accessibility and in compliance with its obligations under the Ontario Human 
 Rights Code and related policies 

 ●  to provide all members of the WRDSB community with an opportunity to provide 
 input to the Committee 

 ●  to ensure that the Committee's decision-making process and any subsequent 
 recommendations are free from discrimination and adhere to the Ontario Human 
 Rights Code and related policies in addressing historically and currently 
 marginalized or underserved students or families 

 ●  to consider delegations in accordance with the WRDSB Bylaws 

 Roles and Responsibilities of Members  : 
 ●  to ensure that the Committee’s work supports the goals in the Board’s Multi-Year 

 Strategic Plan and the Board’s Mission, Vision and Values 
 ●  to ensure that the Committee’s work is supported by relevant Board policy, where 

 applicable 
 ●  to provide official minutes and related recommendations to the Board for its 

 consideration 
 ●  to ensure that the Committee’s work is conducted in an open and transparent 

 manner (within the confidentiality provisions of the Education Act) 

 Reports: 
 ●  Bank Borrowing Resolution 
 ●  Capital Priorities 
 ●  Annual Facilities Partnership 
 ●  Major Capital Projects Quarterly Update 
 ●  Audit Committee Report 
 ●  Audited Financial Statements 
 ●  STSWR Update 
 ●  Final Financial Report 
 ●  Trustee Expenses 
 ●  Interim Financial Report & Forecast 
 ●  Extended Day Program Fee 
 ●  School Renewal 
 ●  Tabling the Budget 
 ●  Energy Update 
 ●  Accessibility Plan 

87



 DRAFT 
 Filling Vacancies  : Vacancies shall be filled by appointment  by the Board, and in 
 accordance with applicable legislation or regulation. 

 Note:  If the Terms of Reference are found to be inconsistent  with or contradict any 
 legislation or regulation, the legislation or regulation will prevail. 

88



 Appendix C-1 
 XX, 2025 

 WATERLOO REGION DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 

 NOTICE OF MEETING 

 The  regular  monthly  Board  Meeting  of  the  Waterloo  Region  District  School  Board  will  be  held  in 
 the  Boardroom,  Building  2,  1  st  Floor,  51  Ardelt  Avenue,  Kitchener,  Ontario,  on  XX,  XX,  2025,  at 
 7:00 p.m. 

 AGENDA 

 Call to Order 

 Territorial Acknowledgement and O Canada 

 Approval of Agenda 

 Announcements/Celebrating Board Activities 

 Declarations of Pecuniary Interest 

 Communications Good News Update  H. Hughes 

 Delegations 

 Consent Agenda** 
 Receipt/Approval of Minutes  : 
 Approve Minutes - Parent Involvement Committee Meeting of XX 
 Approve Minutes - Special Education Advisory Committee Meeting of XX 
 Receive Minutes - Board Meeting of XX 
 Approve Minutes - Business Services Standing Committee of XX 
 Approve Minutes - Student Achievement and Well-Being Standing Committee of XX 
 Approve Minutes - Policy and Governance Standing Committee of XX 
 Receipt/Approval of Monthly Reports  : 
 Staffing Information – Retirements and Resignations  B. Lemon 
 Staffing Information – Appointments  B. Lemon 

 Recommendations from Standing Committees 
 Business Services Standing Committee of XX 
 Student Achievement and Well-Being Standing Committee of XX 
 Policy and Governance Standing Committee of XX 

 Staff Follow Up 

 Reports 

 Board Reports 

 **All  matters  listed  under  the  Consent  Agenda  are  considered  not  to  require  debate  by  the  Board  of  Trustees 
 and should be approved in one motion in accordance with the recommendation contained in each report. 

DRAFT

89



 Board Communications 

 Other Business 

 Question Period  (10 minutes) 

 Future Agenda Items  (Notices of motion to be referred  to Agenda Development Committee) 

 Adjournment 

 2 
 Questions relating to this agenda should be directed to 

 Stephanie Reidel, Manager of Corporate Services 
 519-570-0003, ext. 4336, or Stephanie_Reidel@wrdsb.ca 

DRAFT

90



 Appendix C-2 
 XX, 2025 

 WATERLOO REGION DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 

 NOTICE AND AGENDA 

 A  XX  Standing  Committee  meeting  of  the  Waterloo  Region  District  School  Board  will  be  held  in  the 
 Boardroom, Building 2, 51 Ardelt Avenue, Kitchener, Ontario, on  XX, XX, 2025, at XX p.m. 

 AGENDA 

 Call to Order 

 Territorial Acknowledgement and O Canada 

 Approval of Agenda 

 Announcements 

 Declarations of Pecuniary Interest 

 Delegations 

 Staff Follow Up 

 Reports 

 Board Reports 

 Question Period for Members  (  5 minutes  ) 

 Adjournment 

 Questions relating to this agenda should be directed to 
 Stephanie Reidel, Manager of Corporate Services 

 519-570-0003, ext. 4336, or  Stephanie_Reidel@wrdsb.ca 

DRAFT

91

mailto:Stephanie_Reidel@wrdsb.ca


 DRAFT 
 Appendix D 

 Request to Attend Virtually 
 Trustees asking to participate electronically must 
 submit a request in writing that includes the reason 
 for the request and receive written approval to 
 participate electronically. 

 This applies to: 
 ●  Board Meetings 
 ●  Business Services Standing Committee 
 ●  Student Achievement and Well-Being Standing Committee 
 ●  Policy and Governance Standing Committee 

 Circumstances for Virtual Attendance: 
 1.  Weather conditions do not allow the member to travel to the meeting location safely. 
 2.  The member cannot be physically present at a meeting due to health-related issues. 
 3.  The member has a disability that makes it challenging to be physically present at a 

 meeting. 
 4.  The member cannot be physically present due to family responsibilities in respect of, 

 a.  the member’s spouse, 
 b.  a parent, step-parent or foster parent of the member or the member’s spouse, 
 c.  a child, step-child, foster child, or child who is under legal guardianship of the 

 member or the member’s spouse, 
 d.  a relative of the member who is dependent on the member for care or 

 assistance, or 
 e.  a person who is dependent on the member for care or assistance and who 

 considers the member to be like a family member. 

 Trustees are encouraged to provide information about any known or on-going circumstances 
 identified above to expedite the approval process. 

 Request Requirements: 
 1.  Requests must be sent before the meeting begins, ideally before noon on the day of the 

 meeting. 
 2.  Requests must be in writing. 
 3.  Requests must include one of the circumstances above. 
 4.  Requests are to be sent to the Chair of the Board or Standing Committee, or in the 

 absence of the Chair, the Vice-Chair of the Board or Standing Committee, and the 
 Manager of Corporate Services. 

92



 DRAFT 
 Appendix D 

 Approval Process: 
 5.  The Chair, or Vice-Chair will send a response giving the reason in writing for approving 

 or denying the request, endeavoring to respond as soon as possible. 
 6.  Requests are considered pending until a response is received. 
 7.  For approved requests, the Manager of Corporate Services will provide an invitation to 

 attend virtually prior to the start of the meeting. 
 8.  Attendance by electronic means will be recorded in the minutes of the meeting. 
 9.  A trustee who participates in meetings electronically is deemed to be present at the 

 meeting. 

 Additional Information: 
 ●  A request may be denied based on the need to ensure at least one trustee together with 

 the chair of the meeting (or designate) are physically present in the meeting room. 
 ●  If a request is denied, the trustee is expected to attend in person or request an absence 

 following the "Request for an approved absence from a Board meeting" protocol. 
 ●  A record of all requests along with their decision will be kept by the Manager of 

 Corporate Services. 

 Rules for Virtual Attendance: 
 ●  Trustees shall keep their camera on during the meeting unless prior arrangements have 

 been made with the Chair for extenuating circumstances such as illness or poor wifi 
 connection. 

 ●  Trustees leaving the meeting, briefly or otherwise, shall indicate their departure and 
 return in the meeting chat. 

 ●  Trustees shall vote and indicate requests to speak by using the Raise Hand function in 
 the virtual meeting. 

 ●  For In Camera meetings, Trustees shall not take the meeting in a location where 
 unauthorized individuals are able to hear the Trustee or the meeting discussion. 

93



 DRAFT 
 Appendix D 

 Request for Approved Absence from a 
 Board Meeting: 
 Under the Education Act [s. 228(1) (b)], a trustee’s 
 seat is automatically vacated if the trustee is absent 
 from three consecutive regular meetings of the 
 board, unless the absence is authorized by the 
 board of trustees. 

 This applies to: 
 ●  Board Meetings 

 Trustee Considerations: 
 ●  If a trustee has knowledge of an upcoming event (i.e., wedding, funeral, medical 

 procedure) that would prevent them from attending a regular meeting of the board in 
 person, the trustee should consider informing the board as soon as possible 

 ●  Each trustee is responsible for tracking their own attendance at regular board meetings 
 to ensure they have not violated the Education Act [s. 228(1) (b)]. 

 Request Requirements: 
 1.  Requests should be sent before the meeting begins, ideally before noon on the day of 

 the meeting. 
 2.  Requests should be in writing, except in emergency situations. 
 3.  Requests may include the reason taking into account any privacy concerns. 
 4.  Requests are to be sent to the Chair and Vice-Chair of the Board and the Manager of 

 Corporate Services. 
 5.  Requests are considered pending until a response is received. 

 Approval Process: 
 6.  Through the Bylaws, the Chair and Vice-Chair of the Board have the authority to approve 

 absences on behalf of the board and notify the board at the next Board meeting. 
 7.  The Chair or Vice-Chair will send a response in writing approving or denying the request, 

 as soon as possible 
 8.  The board will receive the list of absences at each affected regular board meeting as 

 part of the Consent Agenda in public session. 
 ○  Example reasons: Illness, Medical Leave, Vacation, Conflicting Trustee Duty, 

 Conflicting Responsibility, Conflicting Activity 
 9.  The authorized absence will be entered in the public minutes. 

94



 DRAFT 
 Appendix D 

 Additional Information: 
 ●  Unauthorized absences will also be tracked by the Manager of Corporate Services and 

 entered into any meetings as an absence. This is counted as a missed meeting. 
 ●  A request may be denied based on the need to ensure at least one trustee together with 

 the chair of the meeting (or designate) are physically present in the meeting room. 
 ●  A record of all requests along with their decision will be kept by the Manager of 

 Corporate Services. 
 ●  If an authorized absence is being sought due to an emergency (unexpected illness, 

 stuck in traffic, accident, etc.) the Board gives the Chair and Vice-Chair the authority to 
 approve absences on behalf of the board and notify the board at the next board meeting. 

 ○  If the trustee cannot advise the chair before the meeting, the trustee must inform 
 the chair at their earliest possible opportunity. 

95



 Report to Board 
 May 25, 2025 

 Subject:  Ontario Public School Boards’ Association AGM 
 Direction for Voting Delegate 

 Recommendations: 

 That the Waterloo Region District School Board allow the voting delegate to 
 vote at the 2025 OPSBA Annual General Meeting as they deems appropriate; and 

 That they take into consideration the discussions occurring at the May 26, 
 2025, Committee of the Whole meeting. 

 Status 

 The purpose of this report is to provide direction for Trustee C. Johnson (or alternate) 
 as voting delegate at the OPSBA AGM. As is the usual practice, OPSBA sent several 
 items slated for consideration at the OPSBA 2025 AGM, in order that they may be 
 reviewed and discussed as necessary at the board table prior to the General Meeting in 
 June.  This review will help prepare the Voting Delegate for the AGM.  This year’s AGM 
 is being held  from June 13-14, 2025 in Niagara-on-the-Lake,  Ontario  . All Trustees have 
 received a copy of the full OPSBA Annual General Meeting Agenda and Handbook. 

 (1) Appendix A - Policy Resolutions from OPSBA Member Boards 
 The OPSBA General By-Law allows member boards to submit policy resolutions for 
 consideration at the Annual Meeting. 

 (2) Proposed Amendments to the Amended and Restated OPSBA General By-Law from 
 Member Boards -  There were no proposed amendments  submitted. 
 Any change to the Amended and Restated OPSBA General By-Laws requires approval 
 by at least two-thirds (2/3) of the votes cast at the Annual Meeting. 

 (3) Appendix B - OPSBA First Vice-President and Regional Candidates 
 Further information about the  OPSBA Roles and Responsibilities  can be found on their 
 website. 

 Financial implications 

 The financial implications are not known at this time. 

 Page  1  of  2 

96

https://www.opsba.org/wp-content/uploads/2023/03/AGM-OPSBARolesResponsibilitiesGuide.pdf


 Communications 

 Trustee C. Johnson, the Voting Delegate for WRDSB, will vote at the OPSBA AGM 
 based on the decisions made during the May 26, 2025, Committee of the Whole 
 Meeting. 

 Prepared by:  Stephanie Reidel, Manager of Corporate Services, on behalf of 
 Chairperson M. Radlein. 

 Page  2  of  2 

97



Member Board Policy Resolutions 2025  Page 1 of 6 

Policy Resolutions from Member 
Boards   

Executive Summary 
The OPSBA General By-Law allows member boards to submit policy resolutions for 
consideration at the Annual Meeting. 

Overview   
The OPSBA Member Board Policy Resolution Submission Guideline outlines the submission 
and review process for policy resolutions submitted by member boards.   

Four policy resolutions were submitted by the deadline. The membership is asked to consider 
each of the proposed policy resolutions along with alternative actions proposed by Executive 
Council and the Board of Directors.  
 
For each policy resolution, the membership may introduce the original policy resolution, as 
presented by the member board or the alternative proposed action.  Policy resolutions placed 
on the floor (require a mover and seconder) will be discussed and voted on. Any parliamentary 
action may be applied to a policy resolution on the floor.  
   

1. Consolidation Study ~ Ministry of Education (Near North District 
School Board) (Near North District School Board) ~ Appendix A 

The Near North District School Board submitted the following policy resolution (See 
Appendix A for complete resolution).  
 

BE IT RESOLVED, That the Ontario Public School Boards’ Association, in the 
interests of applying more resources to student success and well-being, the 
Near North District School Board (NNDSB) is asking OPSBA to write a letter 
and advocate for, on behalf of all member boards, to the Ministry of 
Education to initiate, study and begin consultations regarding efficiencies 
within the four-school board system model. 

 
Executive Council and the Board of Directors have proposed the following alternate action:   
 

WHEREAS, the Ontario Public School Boards’ Association recognizes that 
any Member Board may submit policy resolutions for consideration at the 
Annual meeting;  

98

REIDELS
Typewritten Text
Appendix A

REIDELS
Typewritten Text

REIDELS
Typewritten Text

REIDELS
Typewritten Text

REIDELS
Typewritten Text

REIDELS
Typewritten Text

REIDELS
Typewritten Text

REIDELS
Typewritten Text

REIDELS
Typewritten Text

REIDELS
Typewritten Text

REIDELS
Typewritten Text

REIDELS
Typewritten Text

REIDELS
Typewritten Text

REIDELS
Typewritten Text



Member Board Policy Resolutions 2025  Page 2 of 6 

WHEREAS, advocacy to the Ministry of Education to initiate, study and begin 
consultations regarding efficiencies with the four-school board system 
model could strain relationships with other trustee/school board 
associations at a time when it is essential to work together to support public 
education in Ontario; and 

 
WHEREAS, all indications are that the government, and the opposition 
parties, have no interest in exploring changes to the four-school board 
system at this time;  

 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the OPSBA Executive Council and 
Board of Directors oppose the approval of the following policy resolution, 
presented by the Near North District School Board, at the 2025 OPSBA 
Annual Meeting:  

 
“That the Ontario Public School Boards’ Association, in the interests of 
applying more resources to student success and well-being, the Near 
North District School Boards (NNDSB) is asking OPSBA to write a letter 
and advocate for, on behalf of all Member Boards, to the Ministry of 
Education to initiate, study, and begin consultations regarding 
efficiencies within the four-school board system model.”  

 

2. Reducing the Environmental and Well-being Impacts of School Board 
Carbon Emissions (Upper Grand District School Board) ~ Appendix B 
The Upper Grand District School Board submitted the following resolution (See Appendix 
B for complete resolution). 

Be it resolved, that OPSBA’s Student Success, Equity, and Well-Being Priority, 
recognize the environmental determinants of mental health on student achievement 
and well-being, and that this be included in OPSBA advocacy work plans and 
activities.   

Be it resolved, that OPSBA’s Whole Child and Student Well-Being, and Effective 
Relationships and Sustainable Resourcing Priorities recognize the inequitable 
impact of climate change on Indigenous Peoples, young people and socially and 
economically disadvantaged populations, and advocate for local board efforts in 
addressing these inequities.   

Be it resolved, that OPSBA’s Sustainable and Equitable Education Funding Priority, 
advocate for investments targeted to ensure new School Builds are low-carbon or 
carbon emissions-free, and investments to reduce School Board Energy and 
Transportation Carbon emissions.

99



Member Board Policy Resolutions 2025  Page 3 of 6 

Executive Council and the Board of Directors have proposed the following alternate 
action:   

 
WHEREAS, one of OPSBA’s Multi-Year Strategic Priorities is Student Success, 
Equity, and Wellbeing; and  
 
WHEREAS, OPSBA values environmental stewardship;  

 
BE IT RESOLVED, That the following policy resolution, presented by the 
Upper Grand District School Board, be referred to the Education Program 
Work Group for further discussion and study.  
 
“Be it resolved, that OPSBA’s Student Success, Equity, and Well-Being 
Priority, recognize the environmental determinants of mental health on 
student achievement and well-being, and that this be included in OPSBA 
advocacy work plans and activities. 
 
Be it resolved, that OPSBA’s Whole Child and Student Well-Being, and 
Effective Relationships and Sustainable Resourcing Priorities recognize the 
inequitable impact of climate change on Indigenous Peoples, young people 
and socially and economically disadvantaged populations, and advocate for 
local board efforts in addressing these inequities. 
 
Be it resolved, that OPSBA’s Sustainable and Equitable Education Funding 
Priority, advocate for investments targeted to ensure new School Builds are 
low-carbon or carbon emissions-free, and investments to reduce School 
Board Energy and Transportation Carbon emissions.” 

 

3. Protecting School Board Finances from the Impact of Tariffs and 
Counter-Tariffs (Upper Grand District School Board) ~ Appendix C 
The Upper Grand District School Board submitted the following resolution (See Appendix 
C for complete resolution).  
 
Be it resolved that OPSBA advocate on behalf of School Boards to ensure School 
Boards are made financially whole for any additional operational or capital costs 
due, directly or indirectly, to Tariffs and any Counter-Tariffs imposed by the 
Government of Canada. 
 

  

100



Member Board Policy Resolutions 2025  Page 4 of 6 

Executive Council and the Board of Directors have proposed the following alternate 
language:   
 
WHEREAS, one of OPSBA’s Multi-Year Strategic Priorities is Effective 
Relationships and Sustainable Resourcing; and  
 
WHEREAS, OPSBA values good governance;  
 
WHEREAS, the Provincial government has issued direction to school boards 
about procurement practices in response to tariffs and counter tariffs;  

 
BE IT RESOLVED, That the following alternate wording to the policy resolution 
submitted by the Upper Grand District School Board be approved at the 2025 
Annual Meeting 
 
“BE IT RESOLVED, That the Ontario Public School Boards’ Association 
advocate to the provincial government to ensure that funding is provided to 
Ontario public school boards, school authorities, and treatment school 
authorities to make them financially whole for any direct and indirect costs 
associated with the procurement of goods and services required to provide 
continuity of learning for students in support of achievement and well-being 
of students.” 
 

4. Ensuring Trustee Accountability and Student Safety: Mandating 
Criminal History Checks for School Board Members (Greater Essex 
District School Board) ~ Appendix D 
The Greater Essex District School Board submitted the following resolution (See Appendix 
C for complete resolution).  
 
BE IT RESOLVED, that OPSBA advocate directly to the provincial government, 
specifically the Ministry of Education, to amend Ontario Regulation 521/01 
(Collection of Personal Information) under the Education Act by adding 
section 2(1)(c) to explicitly include "a member of the district school board"; 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that OPSBA advocate to the provincial 
government to amend section 219(1) of the Education Act to explicitly require 
that a person qualified to be elected as a member of a district school board or 
school authority must, in addition to being an eligible voter per section 10 of 
the Education Act, provide a current personal criminal history check (police 
clearance) as required by the amended Ontario Regulation 521/01; 
 

  

101



Member Board Policy Resolutions 2025  Page 5 of 6 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that OPSBA communicate clearly to legislators 
at Queen's Park the importance of trustees modeling the standards expected 
of school board employees and service providers to ensure consistent and 
effective governance practices across all Ontario school boards. 

 
Executive Council and the Board of Directors have proposed the following alternate 
action:   
 
WHEREAS, one of OPSBA’s Multi-Year Strategic Priorities is Local School 
Board Governance; and  
 
WHEREAS, OPSBA values good governance;  

 
BE IT RESOLVED, That the following policy resolution, presented by the 
Greater Essex District School Board, be referred to the Policy Development 
Work Group for further discussion and study.  
 
“ , That OPSBA advocate directly to the provincial 
government, specifically the Ministry of Education, to amend Ontario 
Regulation 521/01 (Collection of Personal Information) under the Education 
Act by adding section 2(1)(c) to explicitly include "a member of the district 
school board"; 
 

, That OPSBA advocate to the provincial 
government to amend section 219(1) of the Education Act to explicitly require 
that a person qualified to be elected as a member of a district school board or 
school authority must, in addition to being an eligible voter per section 10 of 
the Education Act, provide a current personal criminal history check (police 
clearance) as required by the amended Ontario Regulation 521/01; 
 

, That OPSBA communicate clearly to legislators 
at Queen's Park the importance of trustees modeling the standards expected 
of school board employees and service providers to ensure consistent and 
effective governance practices across all Ontario school boards.” 

 

102



Member Board Policy Resolutions 2025  Page 6 of 6 

Resources 
OPSBA Guideline for Member Board Policy Resolution Submissions 
OPSBA Policy Resolution Submission Form 
Education Act 
Municipal Elections Act
Ontario Regulation 521/01: Collection of Personal Information 

Contact 
Stephanie Donaldson, Executive Director 
Lisa Reinhardt, Managing Director, Corporate Affairs 

Submitted
Executive Council: May 2, 2025 
Board of Directors: May 2-3, 2025 
Annual Meeting:  June 13, 2025 
 

103



1

Policy Resolution 
Submission Form
Consolidation Study - Ministry of 
Education 

Rationale

WHEREAS, this motion supports current OPSBA priorities and work related to 
Student Success and Wellbeing; and 

WHEREAS, Core Education Funding continues to decline and Boards of 
Education continue to pass deficit budgets finding it difficult to meet the needs of 
students’ success and wellbeing

Resolution
BE IT RESOLVED, That the Ontario Public School Boards’ Association, in the 
interests of applying more resources to student success and well-being, the Near
North District School Board (NNDSB) is asking OPSBA to write a letter and 
advocate for, on behalf of all member boards, to the Ministry of Education to 
initiate, study and begin consultations regarding efficiencies within the four-
school board system model.

Respectfully submitted,

Date of Submission: February 27, 2025
Name of Member Board Representative: Bill Steer
Title of Member Board Representative: Board of Director
Name of Member Board: Near North District School Board

104

REIDELS
Typewritten Text
A

REIDELS
Typewritten Text



105

REIDELS
Typewritten Text
B



106



107

REIDELS
Typewritten Text
C



108



1

Policy Resolution Submission
Form
Ensuring Trustee Accountability and 
Student Safety: Mandating Criminal 
History Checks for School Board Members

Rationale

Whereas, ensuring student safety and maintaining public trust are foundational to 
effective governance within Ontario's public education system, and

Whereas, Ontario Regulation 521/01 under the Education Act mandates school boards 
to collect personal criminal history information from employees and service providers to 
ensure pupil safety, but does not currently include elected school board trustees, and

Whereas, school board trustees hold significant governance responsibility over the 
board’s operations, policies and regulations, the multi-year strategic plan, and student 
well-being, often accessing school sites and engaging directly with students and school 
personnel, and

Whereas, to uphold standards of accountability and transparency, trustees should 
exemplify the same requirements for criminal history verification that they require of 
school board employees and service providers, and

Whereas, this amendment is directly supported by the Greater Essex County District 
School Board’s commitment to responsible governance, transparency, and student 
safety, and

Whereas, other school boards within Ontario already require trustees, by practice to 
provide criminal history checks, demonstrating that this practice can be successfully 
implemented and should be consistently mandated province-wide, and

Whereas, OPSBA’s value of Good Governance supports policies and practices that 
strengthen trust and accountability within school boards, and

Whereas, this policy resolution directly supports OPSBA’s Multi-Year Strategic Priority 
of Local School Board Governance by reinforcing effective leadership practices and 
aligning trustee requirements with best practices already in place for board employees 
and service providers,

109

REIDELS
Typewritten Text
D



2

Resolution

Be it resolved, that OPSBA advocate directly to the provincial government, 
specifically the Ministry of Education, to amend Ontario Regulation 521/01 
(Collection of Personal Information) under the Education Act by adding section 
2(1)(c) to explicitly include "a member of the district school board";

Be it further resolved, that OPSBA advocate to the provincial government to 
amend section 219(1) of the Education Act to explicitly require that a person 
qualified to be elected as a member of a district school board or school authority 
must, in addition to being an eligible voter per section 10 of the Education Act,
provide a current personal criminal history check (police clearance) as required 
by the amended Ontario Regulation 521/01;

Be it further resolved, that OPSBA communicate clearly to legislators at Queen's 
Park the importance of trustees modeling the standards expected of school board 
employees and service providers to ensure consistent and effective governance 
practices across all Ontario school boards.

Respectfully submitted,

Date of Submission: April 8, 2025
Name of Member Board Representative: Julia Burgess
Title of Member Board Representative: Trustee
Name of Member Board: Greater Essex County District School Board

110



 

PART A:  
FIRST VICE-PRESIDENT 

CANDIDATES 
The First Vice-President, elected at the June 13, 2025, Annual Meeting will hold office 
for the remainder of the 2024-2026 two-year term (ending upon conclusion of the 2026 
Annual Meeting) or until a successor is elected.   
 

POSITION 
 
CANDIDATES 
 

First Vice-President Donna Edwards, Durham DSB 
Robert Hunking, Avon Maitland DSB  
Jennifer Jennekens, Ottawa-Carleton DSB 
Jan Johnstone, Bluewater DSB  
Nadeem Mahmood, York Region DSB 
Pinky McRae, Superior-Greenstone DSB 

* Biographies available at the end of the guide - Part C 

Delegates who are voting on behalf of their board, are encouraged to review the 
Guide to OPSBA Elections and Campaigning  (Appendix A) and Guide to OPSBA 
Roles and Responsibilities (Appendix B).   

111

REIDELS
Typewritten Text

REIDELS
Typewritten Text
Appendix B

REIDELS
Typewritten Text



 

 

REGIONAL CANDIDATES 
(Advance Nominations) 

Nomination deadline for Regional Chair positions was May 14, 2025 @ 4:30 p.m. 

REGION
REGIONAL  
CHAIR 

REGIONAL  
VICE-CHAIR 

PDWG 
MEMBERS 

PDWG 
ALTERNATES 

EPWG 
MEMBERS 

EPWG 
ALTERNATES 

CENTRAL 
EAST 

Jaine Klassen 
Jeninga, 
Kawartha Pine Ridge 
DSB 
Dr. Elizabeth Sinclair, 
York Region DSB 

Dr. Elizabeth 
Sinclair,
York Region DSB 

Shelley Laskin, 
Toronto DSB 
Donna Edwards, 
Durham DSB 

   

CENTRAL 
WEST 

*Donna Danielli,

Halton DSB

Martha MacNeil, 
Upper Grand DSB 

Karla Bailey, 
Peel DSB 

 Kathy McDonald, 
Peel DSB
Carol Ann Sloat, 
Grand Erie DSB

Carol Ann Sloat, 
Grand Erie DSB 

EASTERN *Susan Humphries, 

Renfrew County DSB 

Shannon Binder,
Hastings & Prince 
Edward DSB

Shannon Binder,
Hastings & Prince 
Edward DSB

Shannon Binder,
Hastings & Prince 
Edward DSB

Shannon Binder,
Hastings & Prince 
Edward DSB

Shannon Binder,
Hastings & Prince 
Edward DSB

NORTHERN *Bill Steer, 

Near North DSB 

Sara McCleary,
Algoma DSB 

WESTERN Arlene Morell,
Thames Valley DSB
Malek Mekawi, 
Greater Essex County 
DSB 

Malek Mekawi,
Greater Essex 
County DSB 

Sherri Moore,
Thames Valley 
DSB 
Robert Hunking, 
Avon Maitland DSB
Julia Burgess, 
Greater Essex 
County 
Patricia Smith, 
Avon Maitland DSB

Robert Hunking,
Avon Maitland DSB
Julia Burgess, 
Greater Essex 
County DSB 
Patricia Smith, 
Avon Maitland DSB

Lori-Ann 
Pizzolato,
Thames Valley 
DSB 
Jan Johnstone, 
Bluewater DSB
 

Patricia Smith,
Avon Maitland DSB
 

* Acclaimed to the position of Regional Chair for 2025-2026     PDWG = Policy Development Work Group EPGW = Education Program Work group

112



 

 

COUNCIL/ 
CAUCUS 

CHAIR VICE-CHAIR
PDWG 
MEMBERS 

PDWG 
ALTERNATES 

EPWG 
MEMBERS 

EPWG 
ALTERNATES 

INDIGENOUS 
TRUSTEES’ 
COUNCIL 

      

BLACK 
TRUSTEES’ 
CAUCUS

Tracy Brown, Durham 
DSB 
Debbie King, 
Toronto DSB
Kathy McDonald, 
Peel DSB 
 
 

Tracy Brown, 
Durham DSB 
Debbie King, 
Toronto DSB
Kelly Miller, 
Durham DSB 
Dr. Elizabeth 
Sinclair, 
York Region DSB 

Kelly Miller, 
Durham DSB 

   

School Authorities Director: TBD
Treatment School Authorities Director:  Michael Barrett, Grandview TSA 

Note: Links to candidate biographies received after distribution of the Election Guide 2025 are available at: AGM_ElectionNominationsChart.pdf 
 

113


	PIC Minutes March 25, 2025 (1).pdf
	                                          Parent Involvement Committee 

	SEAC Minutes - April 9, 2025.pdf
	Special Education Advisory Committee 
	Welcome & Territorial Acknowledgement - Jodi Albrecht 




